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ABBOTT (UK) HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

For the year ended 30 November 2007

The directors present therr annual report on the affairs of the company, together with the accounts and auditors' report, for the
year ended 30 November 2007

This drectors’ report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to small compantes under section
246(4) of the Companies Act 1985

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The directors whao served throughout the year, except as noted, were as follows

T Freyman

J Coulter (Resigned 30/3/07)

A Forrest (Resigned 25/10/07)

J Rankin (Appointed 30/3/07)

R Funck (Appointed 30/3/07, resigned 3/12/07)
J Stewart (Appointed 25/10/07)

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The company's pnncipal activity 1S that of a holding company There have not been any significant changes in the company's
principal activities i the year under review The directors are not aware, at the date of this report, of any hkely major changes
In the company's activiies next year

RESULTS

The audited accounts for the year ended 30 Novernber 2007 are set out on pages 3te 7

The profit after tax for the year was £988,000 (2006 £1,858,000)

Interim dividends of £nil {2006 £500,000) were paid dunng the year The directors recommend that no further dividend
be pad (2006 £nil)

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

United Kingdom company taw requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and group as at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss for
that penod

In prepanng these financial statements, the directors are required to

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

- state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropnate to presume that the company will
continue in business

The directors are responstble for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financal position of the company and to enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the Companies Act 1985 They
are also responstble for the system of internal control, for safeguarding the assets of the company and for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregulanties

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

The company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors which were made during the year
and remain in force at the date of this report

AUDITORS

In the case of each of the persons who are directors of the company at the date when this report 1s approved

- s0 far as each of the directors 1s aware, there 15 no relevant audit information (as defined in S234ZA of the Compames Act 1985)
of which the company's auditors are unaware, and

- each of the directors has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information {as defined) apg to establish that the company's auditers are aware of that information

Deloitte & Touche LLP have expressgd thelr wilingness to continue in office as auditors and a resolution to re-appoint them
will be proposed at the forthcomimg Ann eneral Meeting

Date 2"{' [q{’/ BY ORDER OF THE BOARD,
Queenborough, S BROWN
Kent, ME11 5EL Company Secretary




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

ABBOTT (UK} HOLDINGS LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Abbott (UK) Holdings Limited for the year ended 30 November 2007 which comprnse
the profit and loss account, the balance sheet and related notes 1 to 15 These financial statements have been prepared under
the accounting principles set out therein

This report 1s made solely to the company's members, as a body, 1n accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to state
to them n an auditors' report and for no other purpese To the fullest exdent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opiruens we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors' responstbilities for prepanng the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and Uruted Kingdom
Accounting Standards {(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the Statement of Directors'
Responsibilities

Qur responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and Internationat
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in
accordance with the Compames Act 1985 We also report to you whether in our opirion the information given in the Directors’
Report 1s consistent with the financial statements

In addition we report 1o you If, tn our opinion, the company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other
transachons s not disclosed

We read the Directors’ Report and consider the implications for our repert if we become aware of any apparent misstatements
within it

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practices
Board An audit includes examnation, on a test basts, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
stalements It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation
of the financial statements and of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the circumstances of the company,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregutanty or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion
- the financial statements give a true and fair view, In accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
of the state of company's affairs as at 30 November 2007 and of its profit for the year then ended,

- the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Compames Act 1985, and
- the information given in the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the financial statements

Do oo L

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

Date '2_[_‘_“‘ SRQ\:L.‘Q.J 200%




ABBOTT (UK} HOLDINGS LIMITED

Profit and Loss account for the year ended 30 November 2007

2007 2006

Notes £000's £000's

Income from shares in group undertakings 16,000 11,000
QOther expenses (2) (41) (8}
Operating profit 15,959 10,992
Interest receivable and simitar ncome {3) 148 1,286
Interest payable and sumilar charges {4) (15.118) (10.308)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 989 1,970
Tax on profit on ordinary activites (6) - (112)
Profit for the financial year 989 1,858

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this profit and loss account
Note 13 shows the movement on reserves dunng the year

There were no recogmised gains or losses in either 2007 or 2006 other than the profit for the financtal year, consequently no statement
of total recognised gains and losses has been presented

All transactions are denved from continuing operations




ABBOTT (UK) HOLDINGS LIMITED

Company Balance Sheet as at 30 November 2007

FIXED ASSETS
Investments
CURRENT ASSETS

Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

CREDITORS Amounts falling due within one year

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
CREDITCRS Amounts falling due after more than one year

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called-up share capital
Other capital reserve

Prefit and loss account

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

Notes

()

©)

(10)

(11)

(12)
(13)
(13)

{13}

3,402

253,788
(250,622

3,166

3,558
{392)

3,166

250,386

7,015
97

166

6,946

257,332

(255,155)

2177

3,558
(1,381)

2,177
=

The accounts on pages 3 to 7 were approved by the board of directors on 24 September 2008 and signed on s behalf by

J Stewart
Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this balance sheet




ABBOTT (UK) HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
For the year ended 30 November 2007

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the principle accounting policies, all of which have been applied consistently throughout the year and the preceding
year 15 as follows

a) Basis of accounting

The accounts have been prepared on the histoncal cost basis and have been prepared in accordance with applicable United
Kingdormn law and accounting standards

The company has taken advantage of the exemption from the requirement of FRS1 (revised) "Cash Flow Statements” to present a
cash flow statement because 1t 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of the ultimate parent company, Abbott Laboratones, incorporated in
the state of llinois, USA, which prepares consolidated accounts that are publicly available (see note 15)

b} Income from shares 1n group undertakings
Dnadend income from subsidhary companies 1s recognised on the date the directors of the subsidiary declare the dividend

¢) Fixed asset investments
Fixed asset Investments are shown at cost less provision for impairment

d} Taxaton

UK corporation tax 1s provided at amounts expected to be paid, or recovered, using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s recogrused In respect of all tming differences that have onginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date
Timing differences are differences between the company’s taxable profits and its results as stated (n the accounts that anse from
the inclusion of gains and fosses In tax assessments tn penods different from those m which they are recogrused in the accounts
A net deferred tax asset 1s recognised as recoverable only when, on the basts of availlable evidence, it can be regarded as more
likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underiying timing differences can be
deducted

2 OTHER EXPENSES

2007 2006
£000's £000's
Auditors' remuneration payable for the audit of the company’s annual accounts 4 8
Non-audit fees for other services pursuant to legislation - Tax services - 15
3 INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME
2007 2006
£000's £000's
Loans to other affiliated undertakings 148 1,286
4 INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR CHARGES
007 2006
£000's E000's
Bank loans & overdrafts 6 8,331
Loans from other affilated undertakings 15,112 1,977
15,118 10,308
5 STAFF COSTS
Dunng the year, and the preceding year, all the directors were paid by other affiiates within the Abbott Laboratories group of
companies The company had no other employees in either year
6 TAX ON PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
2007 2006
The tax charge 15 based on the profit for the year and compnses £000's £000's
Corporation tax at 30% (2006 30%) - 112
The difference between the current tax amount shown above and the amount calculated by applying the standard rate of UK
corporation tax to the profit before tax s as follows
2007 20086
£000's £000's
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 989 1,970
Tax on profit on ordinary activities at standard UK corporation tax rate
of 30% (2006 30%) 297 591
UK dividends not subject to UK corporation tax (4.800) (3,300)
Group relief - losses surrendered to affiiated comparnes 4,503 2,709
Withhalding Tax on loan interest - 112

Current tax charge for the year - 112




ABBOTT (UK) HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS {continued)
For the year ended 30 November 2007

7 DIVIDENDS PAID

2007 2006

£000's £000's

Intenm patd - £mil per ordinary share (2006 £5,000) - 500
Crdinary dividends on equity shares - 500

8 FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS
The following Subsidiary undertakings are included in the company net book value of fixed asset investments

2007
£000's
Cost at the beginning and end of the year 250,386
The company has investments in the following subsidianes
Country of Pnncipal
Incorporation Activity Holding
Abbott Laboratones Limited United Kingdom Healthcare 100%
Abbott {UK) Finance Limited United Kingdom Group financing 100%

Under section 228A of the Compantes Act 1985, the company 1s exempt from the requirement to prepars group accounts

9 DEBTORS
2007 2006
£000's £000's
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed by other group undertakings 3,406 7,015
10 CREDITORS Amounts falling due within one year
2007 2008
£000's £000's
Amounts owed to other group undertakings - 9
Accruals 26 157
26 166
11 CREDITORS Amounts falling due after more than one year
2007 2006
£000's £000's
Loan from other group undertakings - repayable between 2 and 5 years 250,622 255,155

Interest 1s payable on loans from other group undertakings at interest rates of between 5 4% and 6 6%

12 SHARE CAPITAL

2007 2006
£000's £000's
Authonsed
100,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 100 100
Allotted, 1ssued and unpaid
100 ordmnary shares of £1 each - -
13 RESERVES
Profit & toss
Accoun Other Total
£000's £000's £000's
At 30 November 2006 (1,381) 3,558 2177
Profit for the penod 989 - 989

At 30 November 2007 {392) 3,568 3,166




ABBOTYT (UK) HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS {continued}
For the year ended

14 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

2007 2008

£000's £000's

Profit for the financial year 989 1,858
Diwidends paid - {500)
Net addition to shareholders' funds 989 1,358
Opening shareholders’ funds 2,177 819
Closing shareholders’ funds 3,166 2177

15 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY, GROUP STRUCTURE AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

a} The company is exempt under the Companies Act 1985 from the obligation to prepare and deliver group accounts

The smallest and largest group 1n which the accounts are consohdated 1s the ulimate heolding company Abbott Laboratones,
incorporated in the State of llinois, USA, the consolidated accounts of which are availlable to the public and may be obtained
from Abbott Laboratones, 100 Abbott Park Road, Abbott Park, llinois, IL 60064-6400, USA

b) A matenal element of the company's purchases and sales s transacted with companies in the Abbott Laboratories
Group As permitted by Financial Reporting Standard 8, details of such transactions are not provided in these accounts
as the company I1s a wholly-owned subsidiary and the consolidated accounts of the group are available to the public
(see (a) above)
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ABBOTT » 2007 ANNUAL REPORT

Consoldated Statement of Earnings
(doltars and shares in thousands except per share data)

Year Ended December 31 2007 2006 20056
Net Sales $25,914,238 $22,476,322 $22,337,808
Cost of products sold 11,422,046 9,815,147 10,641,111

Research and development 2,505,649 2,255,271 1,821,175
Acqurred in-process and collaborations research and development - 2.014,000 17,131

Selling, general and administrative 7,407,998 6,349,885 5,496,123
Total Operating Cost and Expenses 21,335,693 20,434,103 17,975,540
Operating Earnings 4,578,545 2,042,219 4,362,268
Interest expense 503,142 416,172 241,365
Interest (ncome) {136,752) {123,825) {87.,693)
(Income) from TAP Pharmaceutical Products Ine joint venture (498,0186) 475,811) (441,388)
Net foreign exchange (gan} loss 14,997 28,441 21,804
Other (ncame) expense, net 135,528 (r9.128) 8,270
Earnings Before Taxes 4,469,648 2,276,370 4,618,920
Taxes on Earnings 863,334 558,615 1,247,855
Net Earnings $ 3,608,314 $ 1,716,755 $ 3,372,065
Basic Earnings Per Common Share $ 234 $ 112 $ 217
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share $ 231 $ 112 $ 2186
Average Number of Common Shares Outstanding

Used for Basic Earmings Per Common Share 1,543,082 1,529,848 1,552 457

Dilutve Common Stock Options and Awards 16,975 6,876 11,646
Average Number of Common Shares Outstanding

Plus Dilutive Common Stock Options and Awards 1,560,057 1,536,724 1,564,103
Qutstanding Common Stock Optiens Having No Dilutive Effect 8,406 23,567 22,469

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

ABBOTT ¢ 2007 ANNUAL REPORT

{doltars n thousands)

Year Ended December 31 2007 2006 2005
Cash Flow From (Used ) Operating Activities

Net earnings $ 3,606,314 $ 1,718,755 $ 3,372,085
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings

to net cash from operating actmties —

Depreciaticn 1,072,855 083,485 868,808
Amortization of intangible assets 782,031 575,265 480,131
Share-based compensation 429,677 329,957 30,140
Acquired in-process research and development — 1,927,300 17,131
Investing and financing {gans) losses, net 356,331 277,388 125,328
Trade recevables {431,846} (101,781) (98,216}
Inventones 131,324 104,653 (88,257}
Prepad expenses and other assets {418,344) (283,455) (406,858)
Trade accounts payable and other liabilties {82,960) (183,203) 199,703
Income taxes (261,539) (84,275) 537,429
Net Cash From Operating Activities 5,183,843 5,262,089 5,047,404
Cash Flow From {Used n) Investing Actviiies

Acquisitions of businesses and technologies, net of cash acquired — {7.923,163) {295,123}
Acquisitions of property and equipment (1,656,207} {1,337,818) {1,207,493)
Sales of (investment in) Boston Scientific common stock,

and (investments in} note recevable and denvatve financial instruments 568,437 (2,095,780} -
Purchases of nvestment securities (32,852) {33,632} {15,670
Proceeds from sales of investment secunties 17,830 18,476 783,599
Other (33,485) (25,712) 14,600
Net Cash {Used in) Investing Actvities (1,136,277) (11,397,629) (720,087}
Cash Flow From (Used i} Financing Actwties

(Repayments of) net proceads from 1ssuance of short-term defst and other (3,603,484) 5,183,225 (1,528,180)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 3,500,000 4,000,000 1,851,013
(Repayment) of long-term debt (441,012) (3,532,408) {150,000}
Purchases of common shares (1,058,793} {754,502 (1,302,314}
Proceeds from stock options exercised, including income tax benefit 1,249,804 502,782 223,637
Dmidends pad (1,859,150} (1,777,170 (1,686,472)
Net Cash (Used in) From Financing Activities (2,312,632) 3,621,927 (2,592,316}
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equrvalents 200,258 73,966 (193,954}
Net cash provided by operating actbies of discontinued operations of Hospira, Inc - 67,152 127,012
Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,835,192 (2,372,495) 1,668,059
Cash and Cash Equvalents, Beginning of Year 521,192 2,893,687 1,225,628
Cash and Cash Equwalents, End of Year $ 2,456,384 $ 521,192 $ 2,893,687

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial staternents are an integral part of this statement
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ABBOTT » 2007 ANNUAL REPORT

Consolidated Balance Sheet

{dodiars o thousands)
Bacember 31 2007 2006 2005
Agssts
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,456,384 $ 521,192 $ 2,893,687
Investments, including $307,500 of iInvestments
measured at far value at December 31, 2007 364,443 852,243 62,406
Trade recevables, less allowances of —
2007 $258,288, 2006 $215,443, 2005 $203,683 4,946,876 4,231,142 3,576,794
Invantories
Firushed products 1,577,083 1,338,349 1,203,557
Work In process 881,634 686,425 630,267
Maienals 592,725 781,647 708,155
Total nventones 2,951,442 2,806,421 2,541,979
Deferred income taxes 2,109,872 1,716,916 1,248,569
Other prepaid expenses and recewvables 1,213,716 1,153,969 1,062,593
Total Current Assets 14,042,733 11,281,883 11,386,028
Investments 1,125,262 1,229,873 134,013
Property and Equipment, at Cost
Land 494,021 488,342 370,949
Buldngs 3,588,050 3,228,485 2,855,356
Equipment 10,393,402 9,847,503 8,813,517
Construction In progress 1,121,328 737,608 920,599
15,697,801 14,401,939 12,760,421
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 8,079,652 7,455,504 6,757,280
Net Property and Equiprment 7,518,148 6,946,435 6,003,141
Intangible Assets, net of amorhizaton 5,720,478 6,403,619 4,741,647
Goodwill 10,128,841 9,449,281 5,219,247
Deferred Income Taxes and Other Assets 1,178,461 867,081 1,657,127
$39,713,924 $36,178,172 $29,141,203

The accompanying notes to congoldated financial statements are an integeal part of this statament
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

ABBOTT « 2007 ANNUAL REFORT

(choWtars a1 thousands)

December 31 2007 2006 2005

Liabilties and Shareholders’ Investment

Current Liabiities

Short-tenm borrowings $ 1,827,361 $ 5,305,985 $ 212447

Trade accounts payable 1,219,529 1,175,590 1,032,518

Salaries, wages and comrmssions 859,784 807,283 625,254

Other accrued labiities 3,713,104 3,850,723 2,783,473

Dndends payable 504,540 453,994 423,335

Income taxes payable 80,406 262,344 488,926

Cument portion of long-term debt 898,554 95,276 1,849,563

Total Current Liabilities 9,103,278 11,851,195 7,415,514

Long-term Debt 9,487,789 7,009,664 4,571,504

Post-employrnent Obligations and Other Long-term Liabilities 3,344,317 3,183,127 2,155,837

Deferred Income Taxes - - 583,077

Commitments and Contingencies

Shareholders' Investment

Preferred shares, one dollar par value

Authorzed — 1,000,000 shares, none issued - - -

Cormmon shares, without par value

Authonzed — 2,400,000,000 shares

Issued at stated capital amount —

Shares 2007 1,580,854,677,

2006 1,550,590,438, 2005 1,553,769,958 6,104,102 4,200,929 3,477,460

Commeon shares held in treasury, at cost —

Shares 2007 30,944,537,

2006 13,347,272, 2005 14,534,979 (1,213,134) (195,237) (212,255)

Earnings employed in the business 10,805,809 9,568,728 10,404,568

Accumulated other comprehensve income (loss) 2,081,763 389,766 745,498

Total Shareholders’ Investment 17,778,540 14,054,185 14,415,271
$39,713,924 $36,178,172 $29,141,203
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ABBOTT + 2007 ANNUAL REPORT

Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Investment
{doliars i thousards excepl per sharg data)

Year Ended December 31 2007 2006 2005
Common Shares

Begnning of Year

Shares 2007 1,550,590,438, 2006 1,553,769,958, 2005 1,575,147,418 $ 4,290,929 $ 3,477,480 $ 3,180,465
Issued under incentive stock programs

Shares 2007 30,264,239, 2006 14,456,341, 2005 8,752,085 1,316,294 526,435 289,329
Tax benefit from option shares and vesting

of restrcted stock awards (ne share effect) 163,808 42 062 52,363
Share-based compeansation 433,319 337,428 28,731

lssuance of restncted stock awards (100,248) (62,392) (27,125)
Retired - Shares 2006 17,635,861, 2005 30,129,545 — (40,064} (65,303)
End of Year

Shares 2007 1,580,854,677, 2006 1,550,590,438, 2005 1,5653,769,958 $ 6,104,102 $ 4,290,929 $ 3,477,460
Common Sharaes Held in Treasury

Beginning of Year

Shares 2007 13,347,272, 2006 14,534,979, 2005 15,123,800 $ (195,237) $ (212,255) $ (220,854)
Issued under ncentive siock programs

Shares 2007 2,063,123, 2006 1,197,838, 2005 588,821 37,080 17,492 8,599
Purchased

Shares 2007 19,680,388, 2006 10,131 (1,054,977) (474) -

End of Year

Shares 2007 30,944,537, 2006 13,347,272, 2005 14,534,979 $(1,213,134) $ (195,237) $ (212,255)
Earnings Employed in the Business

Beginning of Year $ 9,568,728 $10,404,588 $10,033,440
Net earnings 3,606,314 1,716,755 3,372,065
Cash dwvidends declared on common shares

(per share — 2007 $1 30, 2006 $1 18, 2005 $1 10} (2,009,696) {1,807,829) (1,704,077}
Reclassification resulting from the application of the far value option

to Boston Scientific common stock, net of tax (188,534} — —

Cost of common shares retired In excess of stated capital amount (237,958) {780,152) (1,315,397)
Caost of treasury shares ssued below market value 66,955 35,386 18,537
End of Year $10,805,809 $ 9,568,728 $10,404,568
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income {Loss)

Beginning of Year $ 380,766 $ 745,498 % 1,323,732
Reclassification resulting from the application of the farr value option

to Boston Scientific common stock, net of tax 181,834 — —

Beginning of Year, as adusted 571,600 745,498 1,323,732

Other comprehensive iIncome {loss) 1,610,163 898,266 {578,234)
Adjustment to recognize net actuanal gain (loss}

and pnor service cost as a component of

accumulated other comprehensive Income (loss), net of tax — (1,253,998) -

End of Year $ 2,081,763 $ 389,766 $ 745,498
Comprehensive Income $ 5,116,477 $ 2,615,021 $ 2,793,831

The accompanying notes 1o consolidated financial statements are an ntegral part of this statement
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies

Nature of Business — Abbott’s pnncipal business 1s the
discovery, development, manufacture and sale of a broad ine
of health care products

Concentration of Risk and Guarantees — Duse to the nature of ts
operations, Abbott 15 not subject to significant concentration risks
relating to customers, products or geographic locations, except that
three U S whoesalers accounted for 25 percent, 23 percent and
24 percent of trade recevables as of December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively Product warranties are not sigrificant

Abbott has no matenal exposures 1o off-balance sheet arrangements,
no special purpose entities, nor activiies that iInclude non-axchange-
traded contracts accounted for at far value Abbott has penodically
entered into agreaments in the ordinary course of business, such as
assignment of product nghts, with other comparues which has
resulted n Abbott becoming secondarily hable for obligations that
Abbott was previously pnmanly bable Since Abbott no longer main-
tans a business relationship with the other parties, Abbott s unable
to develop an estimate of the maximum potential amount of future
payments, If any, under these obligations Based upon past expen-
ance, the likelihood of payments under these agreements 1S remote
Abbott penodically acquires a business or product nghts in which
Abbott agreses to pay contingent consideration based on attaning
certain thresholds or based on the occurrence of certain events 1n
connaction with the spin-off of Hospira, Inc , Abbott has retained
liabiliies for taxes on income prior to the spin-off and certan potential
labilities, if any, related to alleged improper pricing practices In con-
nection with federal, state and pnvata rembursement for certain drugs

Basis of Consolidation — The consohdated financial statements
include the accounts of the parent company and subsidianes, after
elimination of ntercompany transactions The accounts of foreign sub-
sidianes are consclidated as of Novemnber 30, due to the time needed
to consolidate these subsidianes In December 2005, certain foreign
subsidiaries borrowed approximately $1 4 billon These borrowings
and related interest expense have been reflected on the December 31,
2005 Consolidated Balance Sheet and 2005 Consolidated Staternent
of Earnings No other events ocourred related to these foraign subsid-
ianes In December 2007, 2006 and 2005 that matenally affected the
financial position, results of operations or cash flows

Use of Estimates — The financial statements have been prepared

in accordance with generally accepted accounting pnnciples in the
United States and necessarily inciude amounts based on estimaies
and assumptions by management Actual results could differ from
those amounts Significant estimates include amounts for sales
rebates, income taxes, pension and other post-employment benefits,
valuaton of intangible assets, ltigation, share-based compensation,
dervative financial instruments, and inventory and accounis
receivable exposures

Revenue Recogritionn — Revenue from product sales 1s recognized
upon passage of title and nsk of loss to customers Prowisions for
discounts, rebates and sales incentives to customers, and returns

and other adustments are provided for in the penod the related sales
are recorded Sales incentives to customers are not matenal Histoncal
data 1 readily avalable and reliable, and Is used for estimating the
amount of the reduction In gross sales Revenue from the launch of
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a new product, from an improved version of an existing product,

or for shipments n excess of a customer’s normal requirements are
recorded when the conditions noted above are met In those situa-
tions, management records a retumns reserve for such revenue,

if necessary Sales of product nghts for marketable products are
recorded as revenus upon disposiion of the nghts Revenue from
license of product nghts, or for performance of research or selling
actrvitigs, 15 recorded over the penods earned

Incoma Taxes — On January 1, 2007, Abbott adopted the provisions
of FASB Interpretation No 48, “Accounting for Uncertanty 1 Income
Taxes " Under this Interpratation, in order to recognize an uncertain
tax benefit, the taxpayer must be more Iikefy than not of sustaining
the position, and the measurement of the benefit s calculated as the
largest amount that 1s more than 50 percent likely to be realized upon
resolution of the benefit Deferred Income taxes are provided for the
tax effect of differences between the tax bases of assets and labilities
and therr reported amounts In the financial statements at the enacted
statutory rate to be in effect when the taxes are pad U S income
taxes are provided on those earmings of foreign subsidianes which
are Intanded to be remitted to the parent company Deferred income
taxes are not provided on undistributed earnings rainvested indsfintely
in foreign subsidianes as worlking capital and plant and equipment
Interest and penalties on ncome tax obligations are included In

taxes onincome

Pension and Post-employment Benefits — Abbott accrues for the
actuarially determined cost of pension and post-employment benefits
over the service attribution penods of the employees Abbott must
develop long-term assumptions, the most significant of which are the
health cars cost trend rates, discount rate and the expected return
on plan assets Differences between the expected long-term return
on plan assets and the actual retumn are amortized over a five-year
penod Actuanal losses and gains are amortized over the remaining
service attribution periods of the employees under the corndor
method On December 31, 2006, Abbott adepted the provisions of
SFAS No 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension
and Other Postretirernent Plans " This statement reguwes recognition
of the deferrals on the balance shest with a comesponding charge

to Accumulated other comprehensive ncome (Joss} Adoption of this
statement on December 31, 2006 resulted In a decrease In Abbott's
shareholders’ equity of approximatety $1 3 billion

Far Value Measurements — On January 1, 2007, Abbott adopted
SFAS No 157 “Farr Value Measurements " Adoption of the provisions
of this standard did not have a matenal effect on Abbott’s financiat
position For assets and habdities that are measured using quoted
prices In active markets, total far value is the published market price
per umit multipked by the number of units held without consideration of
transacton costs Assets and liabiites that are measured using signifi-
cant other observable nputs are valued by reference to simitar assets
or liabities, adjusted tor contract restnctions and other terms specific
1o that asset or labdity For these tems, a significant portion of fair
value Is denved by reference to quoted prices of simular assets or liabil-
ities In active markets For all remaining assets and habiltes, far value
18 derwed using a farr value model, such as a discounted cash flow
model or Black-Scholes modet Purchasad intangible assels are
recorded at far value The farr value of significant purchased mtangible
assets 1s based on independent appraisals Abbott uses a discounted
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cash flow rmodel to value intangible assets The discounted cash flow
model requires assumptions about the timing and amount of future
net cash inflows, nsk, the cost of capital, terminal values and market
participants Intangible assets and goodwill are reviewed for Impair-
ment at least on a quarterly and annual basis, respectvaly

Share-based Compensation — Through December 31, 2005, Abbott
measured compensation cost using the minnsic value-based method
of accounting for stock options and replacement stock options
granted to employees Restncted stock awards and units have been
amortized over their service penod with a charge to compensation
expenss In 2006, Abbott adopted SFAS No 123 (rewised 2004),
"Share-Based Payment,” which requires that the farr value of stock
options be recorded in the results of operations

Litrgationn — Abbott accounts for itsgation losses In accordance with
SFAS No 5 Under SFAS No 5, loss contingency provisions arg
recorded for probable lossses at management’s best estimate of a loss,
or when a best estimate cannot be made, a mirimum oss contin-
gency amount Is recorded

Cash, Cash Equvalents and fnvestments — Cash equivalents consist
of time deposits and certificates of deposit with orginal matunties of
three months or less Except for Abbott's investment in the common
stock of Boston Scientific, investments in marketable equity secunties
are classified as avallable-for-sale and are recorded at far value

with any unrealized holding gains or losses, net of tax, ncluded n
Accumulated other comprehensive income {foss) Beginning on
January 1, 2007, the investment in the cormmon stock of Boston
Scientific 1s accounted for as a trading secunty with changes in far
value recorded in income Investments in equity secunties that are not
traded on public stock exchanges are recorded at cost Investments in
debt secunties are classified as hefd-to-matunty, as management has
both the intent and ability to hold these secunties to matunty, and are
reponted at cost, net of any unamorized premium or discount Income
relating to these securities is reported as interest n¢come

Abbott reviews the carmying value of investments in equity secunties
each quarter to deterrmine whether an other than temporary decline

in market value exists Abbott considers factors affecting the investee,
factors affecting the industry the investee opearates in and general
squity market trends Abbott considers the length of time an invest-
ment’s market value has been below carrying value and the near-term
prospects for recovery to carrying value When Abbott determines
that an other than temporary decline has occurred, the investment

Is wrtten down with a charge to Other (income} expense, net

Inveritonies — Inventones are stated at the lower of cost (first-in,
first-out basis) or market Cost includes matenal and conversion costs

Property And Equipment — Depreciation and amortization are
provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets The following table shows estimated useful ives
of property and equipment

Classification Estirnated Useful Lives
Buildings 10 to 50 years (average 27 years)
Equipmant 3 to 20 years (average 17 years)

Product Liabity — Abbott accrues for product habiity clams, on

an undiscounted basis, when it 15 probable that a hability has been
incurred and the amount of the lability can be reasonably estimated
based on existing information The liabilities are adjusted quarterly as
additional information becomes avalable Recewvables for insurance
recavenes for product hability clairms are recorded as assets, on an
undiscounted basis, when it 1s probable that a recovery will be real-
1zed Abbott cames third-party insurance coverage in amounts that
reflect histoncal loss expenence, which does not include coverage
for sizable losses

Rasearch and Development Costs — Internal research and develop-
ment costs are expensed as incurred Chnrcal tnal costs incurred by
third parties are expensed as the contracted work 1s performed Where
contingent milestone payments are dus o third parties under research
and development arrangements, the milestone payment cbiigations
are expensed when the milestone results are achieved

Note 2 -~ Supplemental Financial Information
{doltars in thousands)

Current Invastments 2007 2006 2005
Time deposits and

cartificates of deposit $ 560843 $ 75904 $ 62,406
Boston Scientific common stock 307.500 775,249 —
Total $ 364443 § 852,243 § 62,406
Long-term Irvestments 2007 2006 2005
Boston Scientific common stock $ — $ 248049 % -
Other equity securities 220,518 129,830 116,447
Note recevable from Boston

Scientific, 4% interest, due in 2011 850,594 837,260 -
Cther 45,180 14,734 17,568
Total $1,125,262 $1,220,873  $134,013

In 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board 1ssued Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No 159, “The Farr Vafus Option

for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities " SFAS No 159 aliows
companes to measure speciic financial assets and iabilities at fawr
value, such as debt or equity investments The farr value option for the
investment 1 Boston Scientific common stock was applied effective
January 1, 2007 Abbott applied the far valus option to its investmant
in Boston Scientific stock under SFAS No 1589 because, unlike its
other equity Investments, the Boston Scientific stock 1s not a strategic
investment and Abbott 1s requied o dispose of the stock no later than
October 2008 Abbott was subject to a imitation on the amount of
shares it may sell in any one month through October 2007 and Abbott
will not reacqurre the Boston Scientfic shares it sells Accordingly,
since at adoption, realized gains or losses were expectad n the near
future, the far valus option better reprasented the near-term expected
earnings tmpact from sales of the stock Under the fair value option,
any cumulative unrealized gains or 10sses on an equity Investment
previously accounted for as an avallable-for-sale secunty 13 recorded
as a cumutative effect adjustment to retaned eamings as of the date
of adoption of tha standard The pretax and after tax adjustment to
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Earnings employed n the business upon adoption was $297,000
and $189,000, respectively, and the fair valus and carrying amount
of the nvestment before and after adoption was approximately
$1,000,000 The pretax and after tax adjustment to Accumulated
other comprehensive Income {loss) was $303,000 and $182,000,
respectively The effect of the adoption on deferred income taxes
was not significant

Other (income) expense, net for 2007 includes a $190,000 far
market value loss adjustrment to Abbott's nvestment in Boston
Scientific common stock and a realized gan of $37,000 on the sales
of Boston Scientific common stock Other (income)} expense, net for
2007 and 2008 includes farr value gain adjustrnents of $28,000 and
$91,000, respectively, to certan denvative financial nstruments
included with the nvestment in Boston Scientific common stock

Other Accrued Liabilities 2007 2006 2005
Accrued rebates payable
to government agencies

$ 661,822 § 660,875 $ 620,300

Accrued other rebates (a) 444,633 390,863 206,514
All other 2,608,640 2,708,985 1,866,659
Total $3,713,104 $3,850,723 $2,783,473

(8) Accrued wholesaler chargeback rebates of $156 996 $122 729 and $83 551 at
Docember 31 2007, 2006 and 2005 respectively, ara netted i trade recelvables
because Abbatt's customers are nvorcad at a higher catalog price but only remit
to Abbott thesr contract pnca for the products

Post-employment Obligations and
Other Long-term Liabilities 2007 2006 2005
Defined benefit pension plans and
post-smpioyment medical and
dental plans for significant plans

$1,872,518 $1,897525 $1,087,159

All other 1,471,799 1,265,602 1,088,678
Total $3,344,317 $3,163,127 $2,155,837
Comprehensive Income, net of tax 2007 2008 2005

Foreign currency gain (loss)
transtation adjustments

Minimum pension habudity adjustments,
net of taxes of $(199,100) n 2005 - 5,361
Net actuanal gains and pnor serice
cost and credits and amortization
of net actuanal losses and pnor
service cost and cradits,

net of taxes of ${225,500)
Unrealized gains (losses) on
marketable equity secunties, net of
income texes of ${31 100) in 2007
and $118 500 1n 2006

Net adjustments for deavative
nstruments designated

as cash flow hedges

Other comprehensive income (joss)
Net Eamings

Comprehensive Income

$1,153,209 $1,033968 $ (953,726)

346,172

342,724 - -

(177,722 {9.254)

(39,614}
1,510,163 898,266
3,606,314 1,716,755
$5,116,477 $2,615,021

38,659 38,574
(578,234}
3,372,085

$2,793,831
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Supplemental Comprehensive Income
Information, net of ax 2007 2006 2005
Curnulative foreign curency
translation (gain) adjustments
Cumulative minimum
pension habiity adustments - -
Neat actuaria losses and pnor
service cost and credits
Cumulative unrealized (gains) koss
on marketabls equity secunties
Cumulative losses (gan) on
dervatve instrummants designated
as cash flow hedges

$(2,048,352) $(1,795,143) $(761.179)

8,931

914,844 1,257,568 -

66,403 169,275 (8,447)

18,148 (21,468) 15,193
On December 31, 2006, Abbott adopted the provisions of SFAS

No 158 “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Plans " Adoption of this statement resulted

in a decrease in Abbott's shareholders' equity of $1,257,568, net

of taxes of approximately $733,000

Supplemental Cash Flow Information 2007 2006 2005
Incomea taxes paid $051,648 $1,281,711  $746,504
interest paid 563,891 428,868 213,087

Note 3 — Financial Instruments, Denivatives and Farr Value Measures

Certain Abbott foreign subsidianies enter into foreign currency forward
axchange contracts to manage exposures to changes in foreign
exchange rates for anticipated ntercormpany purchases by those
subsidianes whaose functional currencies are not the U S dollar
Thesa contracts, totaling $281 milion, $768 millon and $222 milion
at Dacember 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, are designated
as cash flow hedges of the variability of the cash flows due to changes
I foraign exchange rates Abbott records the contracts at far value,
resutting n a charge of $12 milhon N 2007 and credits of $16 mitlion
and $39 milion to Accurmnulated other comprehensive income (loss) In
2006 and 2005, respecively Ineffectiveness recorded in 2007, 2006
or 2005 was not significant Accumulated gains and losses as of
December 31, 2007 will be ncluded in Cost of products sold at the
time the products are sold, generally through the next twelve months

Abbott enters into foreign currency forward exchange contracts 1o
manage currency exposures for foreign currency dencminated thurd-
party trade payables and receivables, and for iniercompany loans and
trade accounts payable where the recevable or payable Is denomi-
nated In a currency other than the functional currency of the entity
For intercompany loans, the contracts require Abbott to sell or buy
foreign currencies, pnmanly European currencies and Japanese yen,
In exchange for pnmanty U S dolfars and other European curencies
For intercompany and trade payables and recenables, the currency
exposures ara prwnanty the U S dollar, European currencies and
Japanese yen These contracts are recorded at fair value, with the
resulting gains or losses reflected m income as Net foreign exchange
{gain) loss At December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, Abbott held

$5 5 bilion, $5 6 billon and $3 9 billon, respectively, of such foreign
currency forward exchange contracts
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Abbott has designated approxirnately $1 7 bilion of foreign denomi-
nated short-term debt as a hedge of the net iInvestment in certan
foreign subsidianes Accordingly, changes in the far value of this

debt due to changes In exchange rates are recorded in Accumulated
other comprehensive income {loss), net of tax, resulting in a charge of
$72 milion o Accumulated other comprehensive Income (loss) In 2007

Abbott 1s a party to interest rate hedge contracts totaling $1 5 bilhon
to manage its exposure to changes in the far value of $1 5 billion of
fixed-rate debt due 2009 through 2014 Thesse contracts are desig-
nated as far value hedges of the vanability of the fair value of fixed-rate
debt due to changes in the long-term benchmark interest rates The
effect of the hedge 1s to changs a fixed-rate nterest obligation to a
vanable rate for that portion of the debt Abbott records the contracts
at far value and adjusts the carrying amount of the fixad-rate debt by

an offsetting amount No hedge ineffectiveness was recorded in
income n 2007, 2006 and 2005

Gross unrealized holding gains (losses) on avallable-for-sale eguity
securities totaled $108 milion and $(3) milhon, respectively, at
Decemnber 31, 2007, $21 million and $(304) milkon, respectively,

at December 31, 2006 and $18 milion and ${4) million, respectively,
at December 31, 2005

The camying values and far values of certain financial nstruments

as of December 31 are shown i the table below The camying values
of all other financial instruments approximate ther estmated fair
values The counter parties to financial mstruments consist of select
rmajor international financial Institutions  Abboett does not expect any
losses from nonperformance by these counter parties

{doliars in millions) 2006 2005
Camrying Far Carrying Fair Carrying Far
Value Value Value Valug Value Value
Current Investments
Avallable-for-Sale Equity Secunties 3 - $ — $ 775 $ 775 s - $ -
Trading Secunties 308 308 - — - -
Cther 57 57 77 77 62 62
Long-term Investmants
Avalable-for-Sale Equity Secunties 230 230 378 a78 116 116
Note Recenable ’ 851 809 837 849 - -
Other 45 40 15 15 18 18
Total Long-term Dabt (10,386) {10,593} {7.105) (7,113} 6.421) {6,375)
Forengn Currency Forward Exchange Contracts
Recewvable position 24 24 34 34 i9 19
(Payable) position 45) 45) (86) (86} 34 (34)
Interest Rate Hedge Contracts 25) {25} (85) (85) 82 82)
The following table summarnzes the bases used to measure
certain assets and habilities at far value on a recurring basis
In the balance sheet
Basis of Far Value Measurement Basis of Far Value Measurement
Quoted Quoted
Prces Prces
in Active  Significant in Active  Significant
Balance at  Marksts for Other Balance at Markets for Other
Decernber 31 Identical Chservable Dacermber 31 Idemtical  Ohservable
{dollars in milhons) 2007 itemns Inputs 2007 lterns Inputs
Assets Latniities
Trading secunties $308 3308 $— Interest rate swap dervatve
Marketabtle avalabie-for-sale financial instruments $ 25 $— § 25
secunties 183 193 - Fair value of hedged long-term debt 1,475 - 1475
Foreign currency forward Foreign currency forward
exchange contracts 24 - 24 axchange contracts a5 - 45
$525 $501 $24 $1 845 $— $1 545

In 2007, adiustments 1o record a denvative fnancial instrument

hability whose value was denved using significant unobservable inputs
resulted in a credit to Other {income) expense, net, In the amount of
$25 mdhan The value of this denvative financial instrumant babity was
zero at December 31, 2007
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Note 4 — Post-Employment Benefils
(cokars in thousands)

Retirement plans consist of defined benefit, defined contnbution

and medical and dental plans Information for Abbott's major defined
benefit plans and post-employment medical and dental benefit
plans s as follows

Defined Benefit Plans
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Madical and Dental Plans

2007 2006 2005 2007 2008 2005
Projected benefil obhgations, January 1 $5,614,060  $5,041,086  §4,753,225 $1,520,412 $1.202301 $1,312,124
Service cost — benefits sarned during the year 249,098 218,662 205,286 57,991 55,618 43,554
Interest cost on projected benefit obligations 316,163 275,389 258,709 97,030 79,988 64,088
Losses (gans), pamarnly changes in discount and medical
cost trend rates, plan dasign changes, law changes and
differences between actual and estirmated health care costs (308,760} 64,003 142,453 (100,739) 133,766 138,442
Benefils pad (228,009) 212 830} {195,964) {61,048) (67,511} {65,907)
Acquistions - 86,024 - — 26,250 -
Other, pnmanly foreign currency translation 140,821 141,526 {123,623) - - -
Projected banefit oblgabions, December 31 $5783,373 35614060  $5,041,086 $1,513,646 $1,520412  §1,292,301
Plans' assets at far value, January 1 $5,085626  $4,348,779  $3,465,666 $ 212035 $ 145080 § -
Actual return on plans’ assets 442,536 507,223 384 912 19,578 22,955 9,080
Company contnbutions 282,619 266,269 755,982 136,048 107,511 205,907
Benefits pad {228,009) 212,630) {195,964) (61,048) (67.511) 65,907)
Acquisitions - 92,760 - - — -
Cther, pnmanly foreign currency translation 83,902 83,225 61,817} - - -
Plans' assets at far value, December 31 $5,666,674  $5.085626  $4,348,779 $ 306613 & 212035 & 148,080
Projected banefit obligations greater than
plans' assets, Decernber 31 $ (116608) § (528434) § (692307 $(1,207,033)  $(1,308,377) $(1,143,221)
Unrecognized actuaral losses, net 1,501,409 697,717
Unrecognized prior service cost (cradits) 5,004 (264,408)
Net prepad (accrued) bensfit cost $ 814,106 $ (710,003)
Long-term assets $ 576,146 & 84,266 $ - 8 -
Short-term labilities (27,360) (23,552) - —
Long-term iiabilities (865,485) {689,148) 1,207,033y (1,308,377)
Net liability $ (118,699 $ (528,434) $(1,207,033)  $(1,308.377)
Accrued benefit cost $ (463,789) $ (710,003)
Prepad benefit cost 1,262 892 -
Intangible assets 130 -
Accumulated oiher comprehensve incoms (10ss) 14,873 —
Net prepaid (accrued) benefit cost § 814,106 $ (710,003)
Amounts Recognized in Accurmulated Other
Comprehensive Incame (loss)
Actuanal losses, net $ 919,710  $1,343,052 $ 635302 § 785778
Pnor sanace cost (credits) 39,911 42,659 (227,397) (248,847)
Total $ 958,621 $1,385,711 $ 407805 $ 536,831

The projected benefit obligatiens for non-U S defined benefit plans
was $1,754,000, $1,483,000 and $1,148,600 at December 31, 2607,
2006 and 2005, respectively The accumulated benefit obligations for
all defined benefit plans was $4,520,000, $4,738,000 and $4,158,000
at December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively For plans whers
the accurmulated benefit obligations exceeded plan assats at

December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2005, the aggregate accumulated
benefit oblgations were $697,000, $544,000 and $465,000, respec-
tively, the projected benefit obligations were $770,000, $592,000 and
$508,000, respectively, and the aggregate plan assets wers $64,000,
$22,000 and $5,000, respectively
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Defined Benefit Plans Medical and Dental Plans

2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
Service cost — benefits eamed dunng the year $ 249,098 $218,662 $ 205,286 $ 57,991 $ 55618 $ 43,554
Interest cost on proected benefit obligations 316,163 275,388 259,709 97,030 79,988 684,088
Expected return on plans® assets |425,639) (382,220) {360,304) [24,569) 116,253) {11,04B)
Amortization of actuanal losses 81,110 78,288 65,744 54,727 44,612 31,569
Amortization of prior service cost (credits) 3.573 341 68 (21,550) (21,160 (21,160
Total cost $ 224,305 $ 190,460 $170,503 $163,629 $142,805 $106,103

Other comprehensive income (loss) for 2007 includes amortization of
actuanal losses and pror service cost of $81,110 and $3,573, respec-
tively, and net actuanal gains of $341,408 for defined benefit plans
Other comprehensive income {loss) for 2007 includes amortization of
actuanal losses and pnor service credits of $54,727 and $21,550,
respectively, and net aciuanal gains of $35,748 for medical and dental
plans The pretax arnount of actuanal \osses and pnor service cost
(credits) Included In Accumulated other comprehensive incorme (loss)
at December 31, 2007, that 1s expected to be recognized in tha net
periodic bensfit cost in 2008 1s $46,100 and $3,800, respectively, for
defined benefit pension plans and $42,600 and ${21,500), respec-
tively, for medical and dental plans

The weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obhga-
tons for defined benefit plans and medical and dental plans as of
December 31, the measurement date of the plans, are as follows

2007 2006 2005
Discount rata 6 2% 57% 55%
Expected aggregate average long-term
change in compensation 42% 4 2% 42%

The weighted average assumptions used to determine the net cost for
defined benefit plans and medical and dental plans are as follows

2007 2006 2005
Discount rate 57% 55% 58%
Expected return on plan assets 83% 85% 8 4%
Expected aggregate average
long-termn change In compensation 4 2% 4 2% 4 2%

The assumed health care cost trend rates for medical and dental plans
at December 31 were as follows

2007 2006 2005
Health cars cost trand rate
assumed for the next year 7% 7% 7%
Rate that the cost trend
rate gradually declines to 5% 5% 5%
Year that rate reaches the
assumed ufimate rate 2012 2012 2012

The discount rates used to measure habilities were determined based
on high-quality fixed income secunties that match the duration of the
expected retiree benefits The heaith care cost trend rates represent
Apbott's expected annual rates of change in the cost of health care
benefits and 15 a forward projection of health care costs as of the
measurement date A one-percentage point iIncrease/(decrease)

n the assumed health care cost trend rate would increase/{decrease)
the accumulated post-employment benefit cbligations as of
December 31, 2007, by $205,600/$(163,500), and the total of

the service and interest cost componenis of net post-employment
health care cost for the year then ended by approximately
$28,700/$(22,400)

Approximately 70% of Abbott's U S defined benefit plans and
madical and dental plans assets are invested in equity securities
with the remainder invested in pnmanly fixed income secunties The
investment mix between equity securnties and fixed income secunties
1s based upon achieving a desired return, balancing higher return,
more volatle equity secunties, and lower return, less volatle fixed
Incame secunties Abbott's domestic plans are invested in diversified
portfolos of public-market equity and fixed income secunties
Investment allocations are made across a range of markets, ingustry
sectors, capitalzation sizes, and, in the case of fixed Income secun-
fies, matuniies and credit qualtty The plans do not directly hold any
secunties of Abbott Abbott's international defined benefit plans are
invested in a comesponding manner, with some vanance m portfolio
structurs around local practices

The plans’ expected return on assets, as shown abova, 15 based on
managernent's expectations of long-term average rates of return to be
achieved by the underlying investment portfolios [n establishing this
assumption, management considers histoncal and expected returns
for the asset classes in which the plans are invested, as well as current
economic and capital market condiions

Ahbaott funds ds domestic pension plang accarding ta IRS funding
limitations In 2007 and 2006, $200,000 was funded to the main
domestic pension plan and in 2005, $641,000 was funded to the mamn
domestic pension plan International pension plans are funded accord-
ing o stmiar regulations  Abbott expects pension funding for its man
domestic pension plan of $200,000 annually

Total benefit payments expected to be pad to participants, which
ncludes payments funded {rom company assels as well as pad from
the plans, are as follows

Defined Madical and

Benefit Plans Dental Plans

2008 $ 234,600 $ 79,200
2009 237,800 84 500
2010 247,500 89,800
2011 256,800 95,600
2012 270,800 99,700
2013 1o 2017 1,621 800 567,900

The Abbott Stock Retirement Plan s the principal defined contrbution
plan Abbott's contnbutions to this plan were $118,000 in 2007,
$102,000 n 2006 and $100,000 in 2005

Abbott provides certain other post-employment benefits, pnmanly
salary continuation plans, {o qualifying domestic employees, and
accrues for the related cost over the serwce lives of the employess
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MNote & — Taxes on Earnings
(doflars i thousands)

Taxes on earnngs reflect the annual effective rates, Including charges
for interest and penalties Defarred Income taxes reflect the tax conse-
quences on future years of differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and therr financial reporting amounts U'S income taxes
are provided on those earnings of foreign subsidianes which ara
ntended to be remitted to the parent company Except for taxes on
dradends that were remitted under the Amencan Jobs Creation Act

of 2004, Abbott does not record deferred mcome taxes on earnings
renvested indefinitely in foresgn subsidianes Undistnbuted earmings
rervested indefinitely In foreign subsidianes as working capital and plant
and egquiprnent aggregatad $12,330,000 at December 31, 2007 Itis
not practicable to determing the amount of deferred income taxes not
provided on these earnings In the U S, Abbott's federal ncome tax
returns throligh 2003 are settled, and the Income tax retums for years
after 2003 are open Thers arg numerous oiher Income tax junsdictions
for which tax returns are not yet settled, none of which are indvdually
significant Reserves for nterest and penaliies are not significant

Earnings before taxes, and the related provisions for taxes an
earnings, were as follows

Eamings Beafors Taxes 2007 2006 2005
Domestic $ 660,084 § (868,384) $2,068,232
Foreign 3,799,664 3,144,754 2,551,688
Total $4,469,648 $2,276,370 $4,619,920
Taxes on Earnings 2007 2006 2005
Current
US Federal and Possessions $ 533,460 $ 481,579 § 526,213
State 30,134 17,352 89 483
Foraign 675,205 633,947 616,118
Total currant 1,238,798 1,142,878 1,231,814
Defarred
Domestic (303,657) (544,678) 4,709
Foregn (74 367) (35,564) 17,035
Eracted tax rate changes 2,659 [3.021) (5,703}
Total deferred (375,465)  (583,263) 16,041
Total % 863334 $ 550615 $1,247.855
Differences between the effective ncome tax rate and the
U S statutory tax rate were as follows

2007 2006 2005
Statutory tax rate 350% 35 0% 350%
Beneftt of lower tax rates and
tax exemptions in Puerto Rico,
the Netherlands and lreland (12 6) (18 4) (]
Effect of taxes on remittancss of
foreign earnings i conneclion with
the Amencan Jobs Creation Act of 2004 - - 53
Effect of non-deductible acquired
n-process ressarch and development — 194 -
State taxes, net of federal benefit 04 03 12
Adjustments pamanly relatad to
resolution of pnor years’
accrual requirements - 58 18
Domestic dividend exclusion 31) 59 27
All other, net {0 4) - [<]5)]
Effective tax rate on earnings 19 3% 24 6% 27 0%
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As of December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, total deferred tax assets
were $3,582,137, $3,172,933 and $2,040,908, respectvely, and total
deferred tax labilites were $1,353,5675, $1,136,964 and $1,355,181,
respectvely Valuation allowances for deferred tax assets were not
significant The tax effect of the differences that give nse to geferred
tax assets and labities were as follows

2007 2006 2005

Compensaton and employes benefits § 861,483 § 921,313 § 37578

Trade recenvable reserves 336,542 236,218 227,251

Inventory reserves 219,795 163,004 161,834

Deferred intercompany profit 261,427 390,144 319,402

State incoma iaxes 84,420 51,494 49,153
Depreciation {104,773) (134,849)  (157,272)
Acquired in-process resaarch and

daveloprnent and cther accruals

and reserves not currently deductible 1,751,428 1,268,445 1,132,854

QOther, pnmanly the excess of book
basis over tax basis of intangble assets {1 196,627) (872,334) (1,095,182
Total $2213,695 $2,023635 $ 675,818

On January 1, 2007, Abbott adopted the provisions of FASB
Interpretation No 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty In Incoma Taxes "
Under this Interpretation, i order to recognize an uncertain tax
benefit, the taxpayer must be more likely than not of sustaining the
position, and the measurement of the benefit 1s calculated as the
targest amount that 15 more than 50 percent likely to be realized upon
resolution of the benefit Adoption of this Interpretation did not have
a matenal impact on Abbott's financial position The following table
summarnzes the gross amounts of unrecognized tax benefits without
regard to reduction in tax liabilibes or addirons to deferred tax assets
and liabilties if such unrecognized tax benefits were settied

January 1, 2007 $ 712,700
Increase dus 10 cument year tax pesiions 339,600
Increase due to pnor year tax postions 146,700
Decraase dus to pnor year tax pasitions (10,900)
Settiements 62.000)
December 31, 2007 $1,126,100

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that, f recognized,
would affect the effective tax rate 1s approximately $890,000

Abbott doss not expect significant changes in the aggregate amount
of unrecognized tax benefits that may cccur within the next twelve
maonths, other than tax settlements

Amang the provisions of the American Jobs Creabon Act of 2004 was
a provision that allows for the exclusion from mcome of a portion of the
remittances of earnings of foreign subsidianes to U S shareholders
through December 31, 2005 In 2005, Abbott remitted in accordance
with the provisions of the Act approximately $4,300,000 of foreign
earnings previously reinvested indefinitely The addional ncome tax
expense recorded for the remittance was approximately $245,000
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Note 8 — Segment and Geographic Area Information
{dollars in muhons}

Abbott's pnncipal business 1s the discovery, development, manufacture
and sale of a broad ne of health care products Abbott's products are
generally sold directly to retallers, wholesalers, hospitals, health care
faciites, laboratones, physicians’ offices and government agencies
throughout the world Abbott's reportable segments are as follows

Pharmaceutical Products — Worldwide sales of a broad line of
pharmaceuticals For segment reporting purposes, two pharmaceuti-
cal dvisions are aggregated and reported as the Pharmaceutical
Products segment

Nutritional Products — Worldwide sales of a broad line of adult and
pediatnc nutnticnal products

Dragnostic Products — Worldwide sales of diagnostic systems
and tests for blood banks, hospitals, commercial laboratories and
alternate-care testing sites For segment reporting purposes, three
diagnostic dmsions are aggregated and reported as the Diagnostic
Products segment

Vascufar Products — Worldwide sales of caronary, endovascular
and vessel closure products

Abbott's underying accounting records are mamnitained on a legal
entity basis for government and public reporting requirements
Segment disclosures are on a performance basis consistent with inter-
nal management reporting Intersegment transfers of inventory are
recorded at standard cost and are not a measure of segment operat-
ing earnings The cost of some corporate functions and the cost of
certan employee benefits are charged 1o segments at predetermined
rates that approximate cost Remairing costs, if any, are not allocated
to segments Effective in 2007, the Diagnostic segment was reorga-
nized Pnor years' segment information has been adjusted to reflect
this change For acquisihions pnor to 2006, substantially all intangible
assets and related amortization are not allocated to segments The
follewing segment infarmation has been prepared in accordance with
the internal accounting policies of Abbott, as described above, and
are not presented In accordance with generally accepted accounting
prnciples apphied to the consoldated financial statements

Net Sales to Operating Depreciation Additions to

External Customners (a) Earnings (Loss) (a) and Amortization Long term Assets Total Assets

2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
Pharmaceuticals (b} (¢) $14,632 $12 395 $13,691  $5509 $4,522 $4,294 $330 $150 $170 $ 407 $2615 8389 $ 9,197 $ 9,281 § 6,766
Nutnticnals (d} 4388 4,313 3,937 855 1,206 1,036 115 112 a9 388 184 81 3,261 2467 2,219
Diagnostics 3,158 2843 2,689 252 240 261 286 248 201 374 373 359 3,792 3734 3,432
Vascular (c) 1,663 1,082 253 (188 (115 (138) 234 157 20 312 3,637 88 4,706 4400 290
TJotal Reportablg
Segments 23841 20633 20570 $65,428 35853 $5,455 $965 $667 3490 $1,48t $6,800 $917  $20,956 $19,882 $12,707
Other 2073 1843 1,768
Net Sales $25,914 $22,476 $22,338

(a) et sales and operating earnngs for 2007 and 2005 were favorably affected by the relatvaly weaker U S dollar and were unfavorably effected by the relatively stronger U S goliar n 2006
by The increasa in Pharmaceutical Product segment sales in 2007 1s due primantly to the acquisition of Kos Pharmacsuticals Inc in December 2006 and tha docrease m 2006 1s dug pnmarnty

to the effects of the termination of a distnbution agresement

fc) Additions to long termn assets for the Pharmaceutical Produsts segment includes goodwill and intangibie assets acquired of $1 590 and $821, respectively in 2006 and for the Vascular
Products segment mcludes goodwill and intangibie assets acquired of $1,688 and $1 195, respectvely n 2008

{d) The decrease in tha Nutmbonal Products segment operatng earmungs n 2007 was pnmarily dua to the completion of the U § co-promaotion of Synagrs i 2008

2007 2006 2005
Total Reportable Segment
Operating Earnings $6.,428 $5,853 $5,455
Corporate functions and
benefit plans costs (e) {421) (449) {288}

Non-reportable segments 298 197 204

Net interest expense {456) (292) (154)
Acquired in-process and collaborations

research and development — (2,014) {17}
Incorme from TAP Pharmaceutical

Products nc joint vertura 4498 476 441
Share-based compensation (f (430) (330 (30)
Other, net {g) (1 447) (1,185) {990}
Consolidated Earnings Belore Taxes $4,470 $2,278 $4 620
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(8) Corporate functions and benafit plans costs for 2006 Includes a philanthropic
contribution of $70 to the Abbott Fund

iy The increase in share based compensation in 2007 1s partally due 1o the grantng of
reptacement stock options as a result of the incraasa In the market value of Abbott
common stock Abboit adopted FASB No 123 (rewsed 2004) Share-Based Payment™
on January 1, 2006

{@ Other net for 2007 mcludes $197 for restructunng plans $256 for acquisiion
integration and related costs pnmanly associated with the acquisttions of Guidant's
vascular mtervention and endovascular sctutions and Kos Phamacauticals Inc ang
a $190 far market value Yoss adustiment to Abbott's investment i Boston Scientific
common stock Other net for 2006 ncludes $281 for restructunng plans, $220 for
acquistion integrahon and related costs pnmanly asscciated with the acquisition
of Guidant's vascular intervention and endovascular solubons businesses Other
net for 2005 includes $266 tor restructunng and impainment charges
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2007 20086 2005
Total Reportable Segment Assets $20,956 $19,882 $12,707
Cash and investments 3,946 2,603 3,080
Current deferred income taxes 2110 1,717 1,249
Non-reportable segments 1.575 1,486 1,341
All other, net, pnmanty goodwill
and intangible assets not allocated
0 reportable segments 11,127 10,480 10,754
Total Assets $39,714 $36,178 $29,141
Net Sales to
Externa! Customers (h) Long-term Assets
2007 2008 2005 2007 2008 2005
United States $13,252 $11,995 $12,707 $12,870 $13536 $ 7,717
Japan 1111 1,054 1,027 987 974 935
Germany 1,235 885 992 6,822 6,154 5467
The Netherlands 1,271 1,081 899 211 185 158
Itaty a74 848 806 288 256 211
Canada 832 762 680 156 74 68
France 854 696 857 142 131 92
Span 731 583 542 336 283 232
United Kingdorn 627 517 504 1,31 1,446 1,281

Al Other Countnes 5,027
Conschdated

4075 3,524 2,488 1,857 1,596
$25.014 $22,476 $22,338 $256,671 $24,898 $17,755

) Sales by country are based on the country that soid the product

Note 7 — Liigation and Environmental Matters

Abhott has been dentified as a potentally responsible party for
Investigation and cleanup costs at a number of locations in the United
States and Puerto Rico under federal and state remediation laws and
Is INvestigating potential contamination at a number of company-
owned locations Abbott has recorded an estimated cleanup cost for
each site for which management believes Abbott has a probable loss
exposure No indwvidual site cleanup exposure s expecied to exceed
$3 rmillion, and the aggregate cleanup exposure 1s not expected to
exceed $15 milion

“There are a number of patent disputes with third parties who clam
Abbott's products Infinge ther patents In one of those disputes, filed
in Apri 2007, Abbott 1s unable to estimate a range of possible loss,

i any, and no reserve has been recorded Abbott’s acquisiion of Kos
Pharmaceuticals Inc resufted in the assumption of vanous cases and
investigations and Abbott has recorded reserves relaied to several of
those cases and investigations
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There are several cvil actions pending brought by indviduals or
entites that allege generally that Abbott and numerous phammaceutical
companias reported false or mislsading pnoing nformation relating to
the average wholesals price of certain pharmaceutical products in
connection with federal, state and private rembursement Civil actions
have also been brought against Abbott, and In some cases other
members of the pharmaceutical Industry, by state attorneys general
seekang to recover alleged damages on behalf of state Medicaid pro-
grams In May 2008, Abbott was notified that the U S Department

of Justice intervenad in a cvil whistie-blower lawsuit alleging that
Abbott inflated prices for Medicard and Medicare rembursable drugs
The outcome of thase investigations and Iihgation could nclude the
impositon of fines or penaltes Abbott has recorded reserves for its
estimated losses In a few of the cases, however, Abbott 1s unable to
estimate the range or amount of possible loss for the majonty of the
cases, and no loss reserves have been recorded for them Many of
tne products involved in these cases are Hospira products Hospira,
Abbott's former hospital products business, was spun off to Abbott's
shareholders In 2004 Abbott retaned liabihty for losses that result
from these cases and investigations to the extent any such losses
both relate to the sale of Hospira's products prior to the spin-off of
Hospira and relate to aflegations that were made in such pending
and future cases and nvestigations that were the same as allegations
existing at the date of the spin-off

Within the next year, legal proceedings may occur that may result in
a change in the estimated reserves recorded by Abbott Forits legal
proceedings and environmental exposures, except as noted In the
second and third paragraphs of this footnote, Abbott estimates

the range of possible loss to be from approximatety $110 milkon to
%325 millon The recorded reserve balance at December 31, 2007
for these proceedings and exposures was approximately $165 rmilhon
These reserves reprasent management's best estimate of probable
loss, as defined by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

No 5, *Accounting for Contingencies ”

while it 1s not feasible to predict the outcome of all such proceedings
and exposures with certainty, management believes that thesrr ulhmate
disposition should not have a matenal adversae effect on Abbott's
financial posiion, cash flows, or results of operations, except for the
cases and investigations discussed in the third paragraph of this foot-
note, the resclution of which could be matenal to cash flows or results
of operations for a quarter
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Note 8 — Incentive Stock Program

The 1996 Incentive Stock Program authonzes the granting of stock
options, replacement stock options, stock appreciation nghts, Imited
stock appreciation nghts, restricied stock awards, restncied stock
units, performance units and foresgn qualified benefits Stock options,
replacement siock options and restricted stock awards and units
comprise the magonty of benefits that have been granted and are
currently outstanding under this program In 2007, Abbott granted
20,263,311 stock options, 16,696,463 replacemant stock options,
1,556,770 (net of forfeitures of 87,400) restncted stock awards and
649,530 (net of forfertures of 23,600} restncted stock uruts under the
program The purchase pnce of shares under option must be at least
equal to the far market value of the common stock on the date of
grant, and the maximum term of an option 1s 10 years Options vest
equally over three years except for replacement options, which vest

In six months Options granted before January 1, 2005 included
areplacement feature Except for options outstanding that have a
replacement feature, options granted after December 31, 2004 do
not include a replacement feature When an employee tenders mature
shares to Abbott upon exercise of a stock option, a replacement
stock option may be granted equal to the amount of shares tendered
Replacement options are granted at the then current market price for
a term that expires on the date of the underlying option grant Upon a
change in control of Abbott, all outstanding stock options become fully
exercisable, and all terms and conditions of all restncted stock awards
and units are deemed satisfled Restricted stock awards granted In
2007 and 2006 generally vest between 3 and 5 years and for

restncted stock awards that vest over 5 years, no more than one-third
of the award vests in any one year upon Abbott reaching a minimum
return on equity target Restnicted stock units granted in 2007 and
2006 vest over thres years and upon vesting, the recipient receves
one share of Abbott stock for each vested restncted stock unit The
aggregate far market value of restncted stock awards and units 1s
recognized as expense over the service penod Restncted stock
awards and settlement of vested restrnicted stock uruts are issued out
of treasury shares Abbott 1ssues new shares for exercises of stock
options Abbott does not have a polcy of purchasing (s shares relat-
Ing to its share-based programs At January 1, 2008, approximately
51 millon shares were reserved for future grants under the 1996
Program Subsequent to year-end, the Board of Directors granted
approximately 22 millon stock options and restncted stock awards
and urits from this reserve

The number of restricted stock awards and units cutstanding and

the weighted-average grant-date far value at December 31, 2006
and December 31, 2007 was 3,830,728 and $45 31 and 3,740,341
and $49 04, respectively The number of restrcted stock awards

and units, and the weighted-average grant-date far value, that

were granted, vested and lapsed dunng 2007 were 2,317,300 and
$52 73, 2,156,091 and $46 54 and 251,596 and $47 58, respectively
The farr market value of restnicted stock awards and units vested in
2007, 2006 and 2005 was $114,170,000, $32,226,000 and
$12,949,000, respectively

Options Cutstanding Exgrclsable Oplions

Welghted Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average Average

Exercise Remaining Exercisa Remaining

Shares Price Life {Years) Shares Pnce Life (Years)

Decemnber 31, 2006 146,060,704 $43 B0 62 100,543,786 $43 51 51
Granted 36,959,774 5371
Exercised (47,655,849) 41 83
Lapsed (2371,779) 47 53

Decernber 31, 2007 132,992,850 $47 18 66 88,057,465 348 22 55

The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding and exercisable
at December 31, 2007 was $1 2 bilhon and $882 mlion, respectvely
The total ntrinsic value of options exercised in 2007, 2006 and 2005
was $613 milion, $205 milhon and $189 million, respectively The total
unrecognized compensation cost related to ali share-based compen-
sation plans at December 31, 2007 amounted to approximately $250
milion which 1s expected to be recognized over the next three years

On January 1, 2008, Abbott adopted the provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No 123 {revised 2004), “Share-Based
Payment,” which requires that the fair value of share-based awards be
recorded in the results of operations Abbott used the modified pro-
spective method of adoption Under this method, pnor years® financial
results do not nclude the impact of recording stock options using fair
value Under the rewised standard, awards 1ssued after 2005 and the
remander of any unrecognized cost for grants issued prior to 2006
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are charged to expense Total non-cash compensation expense
charged against income in 2007 and 2006 for share-based plans
totaled approximately $430 milion and $330 million, respectivety,
and the tax benefit recognized was approximately $142 milion and
$78 million, respectvely Compensaton cost capitalized as part of
Inventory 1s not significant

Through December 31, 2005, Abbott measured compensation cost
using the intnnsic value-based method of accounting for stock options
and replacement options granted to employees Had compensation
cost been determined using the fair value-based accounting method in
2005, pro forma net Income would have been $3 2 tillion, basic sarn-
iNgs per share would have been $2 04, and diluted earnings per share
wouid have besn $2 02
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The far value of an option granted in 2007, 2006 and 2005 was
$12 88, $11 72 and $12 17, respectively The far value of an option
grant was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pncing model
with the following assumptions

2007 2006 2005
Risk-free interest rate 4 5% 4 6% 38%
Average life of options {years) 59 61 54
Volatility 25 0% 280% 29 0%
Dividend vield 25% 27% 22%

The nsk-free interest rate is based on the rates available at the tme of
the grant for zero-coupon U S government issues with a remaining
term equal to the option's expected Iife The average Iife of an option
granted in 2007 and 20086 15 based on both histongal and projected
exercise and lapsing data Pnor to 2006, the average life of an option
granted was based on histoncal expenence Expected volatiity for
2007 and 2006 option grants 1s based on implied volatiities from
traded options on Abbott’s stock and tistoncal volatilty of Abbott's
stock over the expected life of the option Expected volatility for
options granted pnor to 2006 was based on historcal volatiity over
a penod prior to the option grant equal to the option’s expected Ife
Didend yield 1s based on the option’s exercise price and annuai
dmidend rate at the time of grant

Note @ — Debt and Lines of Credit
{dollars in thousands)

The following 1s a summary of long-term debt at December 31

2007 2006 2005
0 77% Yen notes, due 2007 $ - 8 - § 83654
Notes, vanable interest above LIBOR — - 770,000
Bntish Pound notes,
vanabla interest above LIBOR - - 344,000
Euro notes, vanable interest
above LIBOR, due 2008 - 264,180 638,768
6 0% Notes, due 2008 - 200,000 200,000
5 4% Notas, due 2008 - 200,000 200,000
1 05% Yen notes, dus 2008 - 430,775 418,270
3 5% Notes, due 2008 500,000 500,000 500,000
5 375% Notes, due 2009 500,000 500,000 —
1 51% Yen notes, due 2010 135,257 129,232 125,481
3 75% Notes, due 2011 500,000 500,000 500,000
5 6% Notes, dus 2011 1,500,000 1,500,000 -
5 15% Notes, due 2012 1 000,000 - -
1 95% Yen notes, dua 2013 225,428 215,387 209,135
4 35% Notes, due 2014 500,000 500,000 500,000
5 875% Notes, due 2016 2000,000 2,000,000 -
5 6% Notes, due 2017 1,500,000 — -
6 15% Notes, cue 2037 1,000,000 - -
Cther, including fair value adjustments
relating to interest rate hedge contracts
designated as far valua hedges 127,104 70,090 82,198
Total, net of cument matunties 9,487,789 7,009,664 4,571,504
Current maturties of long-term debt 898,554 95,276 1,849,563

Total carrying amount $10,386,343 $7.104,940 $6,421,067
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Pnncipal payments required on long-term debt outstanding at
December 31, 2007, are $857,454 in 2008, $1,003,619 i 2009,
$138,218 1n 2010, $2,001,658 1n 2011, $1,000,390 n 2012 and
$5,281,102 thereafter

At December 31, 2007, Abbott had $3,000,000 of unused hnes of
credit, which support commercial paper borrowing arrangements The
unused lines of credit expire in 2012 Related compensating balances,
which are subject to withdrawal by Abbott at s option, and commit-
ment fees are not matenal Abbott's weighted-average interest rate on
short-term borrowings was 3 7% at December 31, 2007, § 0% at
December 31, 2006 and 1 3% at December 31, 2005

Note 10 — Business Combinations, Technology Acquisitions
and Related Transactions

In December 2008, Abbott acquired Kos Pharmaceuticals Inc

for cash of approximately $3 8 billion, net of cash held by Kos
Pharmaceuticals Inc , to expand Abbott's presence in the bpd
management market and to provide several on-market and late-
stage pipeline products Kos Pharmaceuticals Inc was a specialty
pharmaceutical company that developed and marketed propnetary
medications for the treatment of chronic cardiovascutar, metabolic and
respratory diseases This business was acquired on December 13,
2006 and the financial results of the acquired operations are included
In these financial statements beginning on that date The acquistion
was financed prnmarily with short-term debt The allocation of the pur-
chase price resulted in a charge of $1 3 billion for acquired in-process
research and development, ntangible assets of $821 million, goodwill
(pnmanly non-deductible) of $1 6 bilkon and net liabilites, pnmanly
deferred income taxes recorded at acquistion of $331 million
Acauired intangible assets are being amortized over 4 to 15 years
Non-deductible acquired n-process research and development was
charged to income In 2006

A substantial amount of the acquired in-process research and
development charge relating o the Kos acquisiion related primarily
to cholesterol treatment drugs The research efforts ranged from

70 percent to 80 percent complete at the date of acquisition The
valuation method used to far value the projects was the Multi-penod
Excess Earnings Method (income Approach} and the nsk-adjusted
discount rate used was 16 percent In developing assumpticns for
the valuation model, comparable Abbott products or products
marketed by competitors were used 1o estimate pricing, margins
and expense lavels As of Decamber 31, 2007, one drug was
approved for marketing inthe U S and the remairung research efforts
wers pnmanly on schedule The eshmated projected costs to com-
plete the projects totaled approxmately 75 milion as of December
31, 2007 with anticipated product taunches from 2008 through 2010
There have been no significant changes in the development plans for
the acquired Incomplete projects Significant net cash inflows wil
commenca with the taunches of the products

In order to expand Abbott’s presence 1n the growing vascular market,
Abbaott acquired Guidant’s vascular ntervention and endovascular
solutions businesses on April 21, 2006 for approximatety $4 1 billion,
in cash, In connection with Boston Scientific’s acquisition of Guidant
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In addition, Abboett will also pay to Boston Scientific $250 million sach
upon government approvals to market the Xience ¥ drug-eluting stent
nthe U3 and in Japan Government approvals are antcipated in
2008 forthe U S and 1n 2009 for Japan Each $250 millon payment
will result In the recording of additional goodwall The allocation of the
purchase pnce resutted in a charge of $865 million for acquired n-pro-
cess research and development, intangibie assets of $1 2 bilhon,
goodwill (pnmarnty deductible) of $1 7 bilion and tangible net assets of
$580 millon Acquired intangible assets are being amortized over 4 to
15 years Deductibls acquired in-process research and development
was charged to Income in 2006 The net tangible assets acquired
consist pnmanly of property and equipment of approximatety $530 mil-
lion, trade accounts recevable of approximatety $250 milion and
inventones of appreximately $120 milion, net of assumed ratilitiss,
pnmanly trade accounts payable, Itigation reserves and other liabriities

A substantial amount of the acquired In-process research and devel-
opment charge relating to the Guidant acquisition related to drug
eluting and bioabsorbable stents The research efforts ranged from

35 percent to 85 percent complete at the date of acquisition The
valuation method used to far value the projects was the Mult-penod
Excess Earnings Methed {Income Approach) and the nsk-adjusted
discount rates used ranged from 16 percent to 25 percent In develop-
ing assurmptions for the valuation model, comparabls Abbott products
or products marketed by competitors were used to estimate pneing,
margins and expense levels As of December 31, 2007, the research
efforts were pnmarily on schedule The estimated projected costs to
complete totaled approximately $320 million as of December 31,
2007, with anticipated product launch dates from 2008 through 2013
There have been no significant changes in the development plans for
the acquired incomplete projects Significant net cash inflows will com-
mence within one to two years after product launch

In order to facilitate Boston Scientific's acquistion of Guidant, Abbott
also acquired 84 & milion shares of Boston Scientific common stock
directly from Boston Scientific and loaned $900 million to a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Boston Scientfic The commeon stock was valued
at $1 3 billon and the note recevable was valued at $829 milion at
the acquisiiion date In connection with the acquisition of the shares,
Boston Scientific 1s entitied to certain after-tax gains upon Abbott's
sale of the shares In addtion, Boston Scientific agreed to remburse
Abbott for certamn borrowing costs on debt incurred to acquire the
Boston Scientific shares Abbott recorded a net denvative financial
Instruments hability of $59 millkon for the gain-shanng dervative finan-
cial iInstrument hiabiity and the intarest denvative financial instrument
asset The effect of recording the shares, the loan to Boston Scientific
and the denvative financial Instruments at farr value on the date of
acquisition resulted in the recording of additional gocdwill of approxi-
mately $204 milhon Changes i the fair value of the denvative financial
Instruments, net are recorded in Other (iIncome) expense, net

In 2008, Abbott acquired the remaining interest 1N a small medical
products company and a less than 50 percent equity interest in a
small medical products company for $25 milion In 2005, Abbott
also acquired additional nghts related to HUMIRA for approximately
$270 million, which are being amortized over 12 years

Had the above acquisitions taken place on January 1 of the previous
year, consolidated net sates and income would not have been signifi-
cantly different from reported amounts

Nate 11 — Goodwill and Intangible Assets
{doflars in milons)

Abbott recorded goodwill of $53, $3,721 and $69 in 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively, related to acquisitions Goodwill adjusiments
recorded in 2007 allocated to the Pharmaceutical Products segment
amounted to $194 and goodwill allocated to the Vascular Products
segment amounted to $(141) Acguired goodwill allocated to the
Pharmaceutical Products segment amounted to $1,590 1n 2006 and
goodwill allocated to the Vascular Products segment amounted to
$1,688 1n 2006 Foreign currency translation and other adjustrments
increased (decreased) goedwill In 2007, 2006 and 2005 by $627,
$509 and $(535), respectively The amount of goodwill related to
reportable segments at December 31, 2007 was $6,221 for the
Pharmaceutical PFroducts segment, $210 for the Nutritional Products
segment, $261 for the Diagnostic Praducts segment, and $2,086 for
the Vascular Products segment Thare were no reductions of goodwill
relating to imparrments or disposal of all or a portion of a business

The gross amount of amortizable intangible assets, primarily

product nghts and technology, was $9,043, $6,888 and $6,776 as of
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respecively, and accumulated
amortization was $3,323, $2,602 and $2,053 as of December 31,
2007, 20086 and 2005, respectively The estimated annual amortization
expense for intangible assets 1s $7 10 in 2008, 2009 and 2010,

$690 1N 2011 and $680 10 2012 Intangble assets are amortized over
4 to 25 years {average 11 years)

Note 12 — Equity Method Investments
(dohiars in rmillons)

Abbott's 50 percent-owned Joint venture, TAP Pharmaceutical
Products Inc (TAP), is accounted for under the equity method of
accounting The investment in TAP was $159, $162 and $167 at
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectiely, and dmvdends
receved from TAP ware $502, $487 and $343 in 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively Abbott performs certain administrative and manu-
faciunng services for TAP at negotiated rates that approximate fair
value Summanzed financial information for TAP is as follows

Year Ended December 31 2007 2008 2005
Net sales $3,002 $3,363 $3,260
Cost of sales 720 836 BB3
Income before taxes 1.564 1,624 1,379
Nat income 996 952 883
December 31 2007 2008 2005
Current assets $1,101 $1,181 $1,339
Total assets 1,354 1333 1,470
Current habilities 914 955 1,082
Total labilities 1,087 1,008 1,136

Undisinbuted earmings of nvestments accounted for under the equity
method amounted to approximately $136 as of December 31, 2007
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Note 13 — Restructunng Plans
(doflars in mihons)

tn 2007, 2006 and 2005, Abbott management approved plans to
realign ts worldwide pharmaceutical and vascular manufactunng
operations and selected domestic and international commercial and
research and development operations in order to reduce costs In
2007, 2006 and 2005, Abbott recorded pretax charges agamst earn-
ings of approximately $107, $210 and $256, respectively, reflecting
the imparrment of manufactunng faciites and other assets, employee
severance and other related charges Approximatety $94, $181 and
$174, respactwvely, s classified as cost of products sold, $3, $28 and
$10, respecively, as research and development and $10 n 2007 and
$72 1n 2005 as seling, general and administrative Far value for the
determination of the amount of asset imparments was determined
primanly based on a discounted cash flow method An additional
$90, $70 and $14 were subsequently recorded in 2007, 2006 and
2008, respectively, relating to these restructunngs, primanty for
accelerated depreciation In addwion, Abbott implemented facilities
restructunng plans in 2007 related to the acquired operations of

Kos Pharmaceuticals Inc , which resulted in an increase to goodwil
of approximately $52

The following summanzes the activity for restructunngs

Employee-
Related Asset

and Other Impaiments Total
2005 restructunng charges $192 $64 $ 256
Payments, impairments
and other adjustments [Y4) 64) {101)
Accrued balance at Decamber 31, 2005 185 - 155
2006 restructuring charges 118 a3 21
Payments, imparments
and other adjustments (80} {93 (173)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2008 193 - 193
2007 restructuring charges 122 38 160
Payments, imparments
and other adjustments (121) (38) {159)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2007 $104 $ - $194

Abbott expects to incur up to an addional $73 in future penods for
restructunng plans, pnmanly for accelerated depreciation
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Note 14 — Quarterly Results (Unaudited)

{clollars in mions axcept per share data)

2007 2008 2005

First Quarter
Ngt Sales $5,945 5 $5,1835  $5,3827
Gross Profit 3,353 5 30138 2.8601
Net Earmings 6976 8650 8379
Basic Earnings Per Common Share (a) 45 57 54
Diluted Earnings Per Commaon Share (b) 45 56 53
Market Pnce Per Share-High 57 26 45 58 48 16
Markst Pnce Per Share-Low 4875 3918 43 34
Second Quarter
Net Sales $6,3706 $55011 $55238
Gross Profit 3,566 3 31125 2,892 0
Net Earnings (c) 9887 6122 B77 1
Basic Earnings Per Common Share (a) (c) B4 40 56
Diluted Eamings Per Common Share () {¢) 63 40 56
Market Pnce Per Share-High 59 50 43 61 4998
Market Price Per Share-Low 52 80 40 55 45 98
Third Quarter
Net Sales $6,376 7 $5573 8 $5,384 0
Gross Profit 35127 31825 27068
Net Earnings (¢ 7170 7158 6807
Basic Earmings Per Common Shara (a) (d) 46 47 44
Diuted Earnings Par Common Share (b) (d) 46 45 44
Market Pnce Per Share-High 56 91 49 87 5000
Market Price Par Share-Low 49 58 43 25 4157
Fourth Quarter
Net Sales $7,2214 $6,2180 $6,047 3
Gross Profit 40687 3,352 4 3,237 8
Net Earnings (Loss) (e) 1,2030 (476 2) Q76 4
Basic Eamings (Loss)
Per Commor Share (a) (€) 78 (31) 83
Diluted Earmings (Loss)
Per Common Share (b} (€) 77 (31) 83
Market Pnce Per Share-High 5948 49 10 44 36
Market Pnce Per Share-Low 5051 45 41 37 50
() The sum of the quarters’ basks samsngs per share for 2007 and 2006 do not add

to tha full year eamngs per share amounts due to rounding
() The sum of the quarters diuted eamings per shara for 2008 does not add to the

full year eqrmings per share amount due to rounding
{c) Second quarter 2006 includes a pretax charge of $493 for acquied in-process

and cotaborations research and development
{c) Third quarter 2008 ncludes a pretax charge of $214 jor acquired in-process research

&)

and developmant and 2005 ncludes pretax restructunng charges ot $201

Fourth quarter 2006 includes a pretax charge of $1 307 for acquired n-process
and collaboratons ressarch anx development

81
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Management Report on Internal Control
CQver Financial Reporting

The management of Abbott Laboratonss 1s responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting Abbott's internal control system was designed to provide
reasonable assurance to the company's management and board of
directors regarding the preparaton and fair presentation of published
financial statements

All internal contro! systems, no matter how we!l designed, have
inherent imitations  Therefora, even those systermns determined

to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respact
to financial statement preparation and presentation

Abbott's management assessed the affectiveness of the company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007

In making thus assessment, it used the cntena set forth 1n Internal
Contral-Integrated Framework 1ssued by the Cormnmittee of Sponsonng
Organizaions of the Treadway Commission Based on our assess-
ment, we believe that, as of Decembar 31, 2007, the company's
internal control over financial reporting was effective based on

those cntena

Abbott's ndependent registered public accounting firm has issued

an audrt report on their assessment of the effectiveness of the
company's internal control over financial reporting This report appears
on page 63

Miles D White
Charman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Thomas C Freyman
Executive Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer

Greg W Linder
Vice President and Centroller

February 14, 2008
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Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Abbott Laboratones

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

of Abbott Laboratones and subsidiangs (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, and the related consolidated
statements of earnings, shareholders’ nvestment, and cash flows for
the years then ended These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company's management Our responsibibly 15 to express an
opinton on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounung Oversight Board (United States) Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtan reason-
able assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
matenal misstatement An audit includes examining, on a test basts,
svidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
staterments An audit also Includes assessing the accounting pnnciples
used and significant estmates mads by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We beleve

that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our gpinion

In our opinton, such consolidated financial statements present fairty,

in all matenal respects, the financial position of the Gompany as of
December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with account-
Ing prnciples generally accepted in the United States of Amenca

As discussed In Notes 1, 2, 4, and 8 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for faw
value measurements to adept Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS") No 157, Far Vialue Measurements, and adopted
the far value option under SFAS No 159, The Fair Value Option for
Financial Assets and Financial Liabiittres, for certamn nvestmenis in
2007, and the Company changed its method of accounting for pen-
sion and other post employment benefits and share-based payments
to adopt SFAS No 158, Employers” Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pansion and Other Postretiremnent Plans, and SFAS No 123(R),
Share-Based Payment, in 2006

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Company’s
internal contro! over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007,
based on the cntena established in Internal Control-integrated
Framework 1ssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 14, 2008
expressed an ungualfied opinion on the Company's Internat control
over financial reporting

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, llinois
February 14, 2008

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Abbott [ aboratones

We have audited the internal controi over financial reporting of Abbott
Laboratones and subsidianes (the “Company”} as of December 31,
2007, based on crtena established in Intemal Control-Integrated
Framework 1ssued by the Committes of Sponsonng Organizations of
the Treadway Commission The Company’s management is responsi-
ble for mantaning effective internal contro! over financial reporting and
for tts assessment of the effectiveness of internal contro! cver financial
reporting, Included n the accompanying Management Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to
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express an opinion on the Company's internal contrel over financial
reporting based on our audt

Wa conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (Uruted States) Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audt to obtan reason-
able assurance about whether effective internal centrol over financial
reporting was mantamned in all matenat respects Our audi included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
assessing the rsk that a matenal weakness exists, testing and evaluat-
ing the design and operating effectveness of internal control based

on the assessed nsk, and performing such other procedures as we
considerad necessary in the crcumstances We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion

A company's internal control over financial reporting 1s a process
designed by, or under the suparvision of, the company’s principal
executive and prncipal financial officers, or persons performing sumar
functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, manage-
ment, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial state-
ments for external purposes In accordance with generally accepted
accounting prnciples A company's internal control over financial
reporting ncludes those palicies and procedures that (1) pertan to the
matrtenance of records that, in reasonable detall, accurately and faty
reflact the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company,
{2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements N accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only n accordance with
authonzations of managsment and directors of the company, and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detec-
tion of unauthonzed acquisition, use, or disposttion of the company’s
assets that could have a materal effect on the financial staterents

Because of the inherent Imitations of internal control over financial
reporting, ncluding the possibility of collusion or iIMproper manage-
ment overnde of controts, matenal misstatements dus to error or fraud
may not be prevented or detected on a timealy basis Also, projsctions
of any evaluation of the effectiveniess of the internal con'rol over finan-
cial reporting to future penods are subject to the nsk that the controls
may become inadequate because of changes I conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion, the Company mantaned, in all matenal respects, effec-
tive Internal controt over financial reporting as of Decermber 31, 2007,
basad on the cntena established In intemal Control-Integrated
Framework 1ssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations

of the Treadway Commission

Woa have also audited, n accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consol-
dated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2007 and our report dated February 14, 2008
expressed an unqualfied opinion on those financial statements and
ncluded an explanatory paragraph regarding the Company's adoption
of new accounting standards

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, llnois
Fabruary 14, 2008




ABBOTT » 2007 ANNUAL REPORT

Financial instruments and Risk Management

Investrnent in Boston Scientific Commen Stock and Note Recevable

At December 31, 2007, Abbott held 26 4 milion shares, or approxi-
mately $300 million of Boston Scientific common stock Subsegquent
to year end, all of these shares wers sold resulting In a small gain At
December 31, 2006, Abbott held 84 6 millon shares, or approximately
$1 billon of Boston Scientfic commaon stock Abbott also has a

$900 mithon loan, due in Apnl 2011, to a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Boston Scientific as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and, as such,

1s SUbject to cradit nsk

Other Market Price Sensitive Investments

Abbott holds avallable-for-sale equity secunties from strategic technol-
ogy acquisitions Excluding Boston Scientific, the market value of
these investments was approximately $193 millon and $97 million,
respectively, as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 Abbott monitors
these investments for other than temporary declines in market value,
and charges impairment losses to Income when an other than tempo-
rary dechine in value occurs A hypothetical 20 percent decrease in
the share pnces of these investments would decrease therr far valug
at December 31, 2007 by approximately $32 millon (A 20 percent
decrease 1s believed o be a reasonably possible near-term change

in share pnces )

Non-Publicly Traded Equity Securities

Abbott holds equity secunties from strategic technology acquisitions
that are not traded on public stock exchanges The carrying value of
these Investments was approximately $37 mulion and $33 milion as of
December 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively No indmvidual investment
15 11 excess of $13 millon Abbott monitors these investments for
other than temporary declines in market valus, and charges imparr-
ment losses to Income when an other than temporary decline in
estimated value occurs

Interest Rate Sensitive Financial Instruments

At December 31, 2007 and 2008, Abbott had interest rate hedge
contracts totaling $1 5 bilion to manage its exposure o changes

in the fair valus of debt due 1N 2009 through 2014 The effect of
these hedges s to change the fixed interest rate to a vanable rate
Abbott does not use denvative financial Instruments, such as interest
rata swaps, to manage its exposurs to changes In intersst rates

for its investment secunties The far value of long-term debt at

December 31, 2007 and 2006 amounted to $10 6 billion and

$7 1 tilhon, respectivety (average interest rates of 5 0% and 4 7%,
respectively) with matunties through 2037 At December 31, 2007
and 20086, the far market value of current and long-term investment
secunties amounted to $896 million and $941 million, respectively
A hypothetical 100-basis point change n the interest rates would
not have a matenal effect on cash flows, Income or market values
(A 100-basis point change 1s believed (0 b a reasonably possible
near-tanm change in rates )

Foreign Currency Sensitive Financial Instruments

Abbott enters into foreign currency forward exchange contracts to
manage its exposure to foreign currency denominated mtercompany
ioans and trade payables and thurd-party trade payables and recen-
ables The contracts are marked-to-market, and resutting gans or
losses are reflected in income and are generally offset by losses or
gains on the foreign currency exposure baing managed At December
31, 2007 and 2006, Abbott held $5 5 billion and $5 6 bilion, respec-
tively, of such contracts, which mature i the next twelve months

In addition, certan Abbott foreign subsidianes enter into foreign
currency forward exchange contracts 1o manage exposures to
changes In foreign exchange rates for anticipated Intercempany pur-
chases by those subsidiaries whose functicnal currencies are not the
US doflar These contracts are designated as cash flow hedges of
the vanability of the cash flows due to changes in foreign exchange
rates and are marked-to-market with the resulting gams or logses
reflected in Accumulated other comprehensive income (10ss}

Gains or losses will be included in Cost of products sold at the tme
the products are sokd, generally within the next twelve months

At December 31, 2007 and 2008, Abbett held $281 million and
$768 million, respectivaly, of such contracts, which all mature n the
following calendar year

Abboctt has designated approximately $1 7 billion of forsign denomi-
nated short-term debt as a hedgs of the net invastment in certain
forexgn subsidianes Accordingly, changes in the far value of this debt
due to changes in exchange rates are recorded In Accumuiated other
comprehensive Income (Joss)

The followng table reflects the total foreign currency forward contracts
outstanding at December 31, 2007 and 2006

2007 2006

Fair and Farr and

Carying Camyng

Average Valug Average Value

Contract Exchange  Recevable/ Contract Exchange  Recewable/

(doliars In millkons) Amount Rate (Payable) Amount Rate {Payable)

Recewe pnmanty U S Dollars

in exchange for the following currencies

Eurp $2,630 1464 $(11} $2,644 1303 $38)

Bntsh Pound 1,030 2 041 - 1,910 1928 {14)

Japanesa Yen 39 113¢ (s} 898 1155 (3)

Canadian Dollar 4265 0985 {1 332 1115 [

All gther currencies 716 N/A {4} 603 N/A 3)

Total $5,741 (21} $6,387 $(52)




Financial Review

Abbott's revenues are derved pnmarly from the sale of a broad line
of health care products under short-term recewvable arrangements
Patent protection and licenses, technological and performance
features, and inclusion of Abbott's products under a contract or by

a pharmacy benefit manager most impact which products are sold,
price controls, competition and rebates most mpact the net seling
pnces of products, and foreign currency translation impacts the
measurement of net sales and costs Abbeott's pnmary products

are prescnption pharmaceuticals, nutntional products, diagnostic
testing products and vascular products Abbott also owns 50 percent
of TAP Pharmaceutical Products Inc that Abbott accounts for on the
equity method

Tha werldwide launch of additional indications of HUMIRA, the acqui-
sitions of Guidant’s vascular intervention and endovascular solutions
businesses and Kos Pharmaceutcals Inc , the amendments ending
the Boehringer Ingetheim agreement and the Synagis co-promotion
agreement, the loss of patent protection for some phammaceutical
products, and realized gains and unrealized losses on the Boston
Scientfic commen stock have impacted Abbott's sales, costs and
financial position over the last three years

Pharmacsutical research and development 1s focused on therapeutic
areas that include rmmunology, oncology, neuroscience, pan manage-
ment, and infectious diseases In 2003, Abbott began the worldwide
launch of HUMIRA for rheumatoid arthitis, followed by launches for
three addiional indications, which increased HUMIRA’s worldwide
sales {0 $3 0 billon In 2007 compared to $2 O bilhon in 2006, and

$1 4 billion in 2005 Including the launch of a fifth Indication in 2008,
Abbott forecasts worldwide HUMIRA salas of approximately $4 billion
In 2008 Substantial research and development and selling support
has been and continues to be dedicated to maximizing the worldwide
potential of HUMIRA In December 2006, Abbott acquired Kos
Pharmaceuticals Inc which complements Abbott’s existing franchise
In the dyslipidemnia market and strengthenad the pharmaceutical
pipeline for cholesteral management In 2005, Abbott and Boehninger
Ingelheim (Bl amended their agresment whereby Abbott distnbuted
and promoted B! products Effective January 1, 2008, Abbott no
longer distnbuted or recorded sales for distnbution activiies for the

Bl products Abbott's gross margins for Bl products from the pnor
agreement in effect through December 31, 2005 were substantially
lower than its average gross margins Sales of Bl products were
$150 milion and $2 3 kilhen in 2006 and 2005, respectively In add-
tion, increased genenc competition resulted In U S sales of Ominicef
dechning from $637 million In 2006 to $235 millon in 2007, and
worldwide sales of clanthromycin declinuing from $1 1 bilhion in 2005
to $724 million n 2007

On December 31, 2008, the U § co-promotion agreement for
Synagrs terminated Revenues for co-promotion of Synagis werg
$373 millton n 2006 Abbott’s nutrtional products businesses have
been reorganized into a worldwide business to better leverage the
opportunities avallable for strong nutntional brands  Signdicant efforts
have been focused on captunng those opportunibes, particularty in
developing markets where growth has been strong

In Apnl 2006, Abbott acquired Guidant's vascular intervention and
endovascular solutions businesses and began to integrate it with
Abbott's vascular business The acquisition significantly improved
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Abbott’s competitive posttion i this business that 1s charactenized by
rapid innovation In 2006, Abbott receved European Union approval
to market the Xience V drug eluting stent, and Abbott 1s awaiting
approval Inthe U 8

Abbott's diagnostic segment compnses three separate dmvisions-
immunochemistry/hematology, point of care, and molecular
Subseqguent to the termination of the agreement to sell the immuno-
chemistry/hermnatology and pomnt of care businesses to GE, Abbott
has re-focused on managing and growing these businesses

Abbott acqured 64 6 milion shares of Bosten Scientific In connection
with Abbott's acquisition of the vascular intervention and endaovascular
solutions businesses of Guidant In 2007, the net loss charged to
expense for the investrment was $153 millon At December 31, 2007,
Abbott held 26 4 million shares of Boston Scientific common stock
Subsequent to year end, all of these shares were sold resuting ina
small gan Abbott's short- and long-term debt totaled $12 2 billion at
December 31, 2007, largely incurred to finance recent acquistions
Operating cash flows in excess of capital expendrtures and cash
dmdends have partially funded acquisitions over the last three years
At December 31, 2007, Abbott's long-term debt rating was AA by
Standard and Poor's Corporation and A1 by Moody's Investors Senvice

In 2008, Abbott will focus on several Key initiatives In the pharmaceu-
tical business, Abbott will continue the launch of newly approved
indications for HUM/RA and continue to leverage the product and
pipetine oppartunities of its ipid franchise, ncluding the Kos
Pharmaceuticals Inc business Pharmaceutical research and develop-
ment efforts will continue to fecus on the therapeutic areas noted
above with a significant portton of the developmant expenditures allo-
cated to new HUMIRA indications, as well as Simeor and ABT-335,
cholesterol drugs, ABT-335/Crestor fixed dose combination, ABT-874,
a biologic for psonasis and Crohn's disease, and cantrolled release
Vicodin CR, as well as several Phase | and Phase It climical programs In
neuroscience and oncology In the vascular busness, Abbott will con-
tnue the launch of the Xfence V drug-elutng stent infernationally, and
will launch in the U S upon approval by the FDA For diabetes care,
Abbott anticipates launching the FreeStyle Fresdom Lite monitor in the
U S as well as the FreeStyle Navigator In the other business seg-
maents, Abbott will focus on developing or acquinng differenbiated
technologies in higher growth segments of those markets

Cntical Accounting Policies

Sales Rebates — Approximately 48 percent of Abbott's consolidated
gross revenues are subject to vanous forms of rebates and allowances
that Abbott records as reductions of ravenues at the tme of sale Most
of these rebates and allowances are in the Pharmaceutical Products
segment and the Nutntiona! Products segment Abbott provides
rebates to pharmacy benefit management companies, to state agen-
cies that administer the federal Medicaid and Medicare programs and
the Special Supplemeantal Food Program for Women, Infants, and
Children (WIC), wholesalers, group purchasing organizations, and
other government agencies and private entiies Rebate amounts are
usually based upon the volume of purchases using contractual or
statutory pnces for a praduct Factors used in the rebate calculations
include the Wentdfication of which products have been sold subject to
a rebate, which customer or government agency pnce terms apply,
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and the estimated lag time between sale and payment of a rebate
Using histoncal trends, adjusted for current changes, Abbott estimates
the amount of the rebate that will be paid, and records the liabity as a
reduction of gross sales when Abbott records its sale of the product
Settlement of the rebate generally occurs from two to 24 months after
sale Abbott regularly analyzes the histoncal rebate trends and makes
adjustments to reserves for changes in trends and terms of rebate
programs Rebates and chargebacks charged against gross sales

In 2007, 2006 and 2005 amounted to approximatety $3 2 bilion,

$2 6 billion and $2 5 billion, respectively, or 21 5 percent, 23 2 per-
cent, and 22 9 percent, respectively, based on gross sales of
approximately $15 0 billion, $11 0 billion and $10 9 bitlion, respectively,
subject to rebate A one-percentage point increase in the percentage
of rebates to related gross sales would decrease net sales and
operating earnings by approximataty $150 milion in 2007 Abbott
considers a ona-percentage pont increase to be a reasonably likely
Increase In the percentage of rebates to related gross safes Cther
allowances charged against gross sales were approximatety $325 mil-
lion, $247 millon and $284 milion for cash discounts n 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectivaly, and $269 millon, $209 mullion and $162 million
for returns in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively Cash discounts are
known within 15 to 30 days of sale, and therefore can be reliably asti-
mated Returns can be reliably estimated because Abbott's historical
returns are low, and because sales returns terms and other sales
terms have remained relatively unchanged for several penods

Management analyzes the adsquacy of ending rebate accrual bal-
ances each quarter In the domestic nutntional business, management
uses both internal and external data avallable to estimate the lavel of
inventory in the distribution channel Management has access ¢ sev-
eral large customers' Inventory management systerns, and for other
customers, uthizes data from a third party that continuously measures
time on the retail shelf These sources allow management to make
reliabla estimates of nventory in the distnbution channel Except for a
transition penod before or after a change in the supplier for the WIC
business in a state, Inventory in the distnbution channel does not vary
substantially Management also estimates the states' processing lag
time based on clams data In addition, internal processing tme 1s a
factor n estimating the accrual In the WIC business, the state where
the sale 1s made, which s the determining factor for the applicable
price, 15 reliably determinable Estimates ars requirad for the amount
of WIC sales within each state where Abbott has the WIC business
External data sources utiized for that estmate are participant data
from the U S Department of Agricutture (USDA), which administers the
WIC program, participant data from some of the states, and internally
administered market surveys The USDA has been making its data
avarlable for many years Internal data ncludes histoncal redemption
rates and pricing data At December 31, 2007, Abbott had the exclu-
siva WIC busingss in 27 states

In the domestic pharmaceutical business, the most significant charges
against gross sales are for Medicaid and Medicare Rebates, Phamacy
Benefit Manager Rebates and Wholesaler Chargebacks In order to
evaluate the adequacy of the ending accrual balances, managerment
uses both internal and external estmates of the level of nventory

11 the distnbution channel and the rebate clams processing lag time
External data sources used to estimate the inventory In the distrbution

channe! include inventory levels penodically reperied by wholesalers
and third party market data purchased by Abbott Management esti-
mates the processing lag tme based on penadic sampling of clams
data To estimate the pnce rebate percentage, systems and calcula-
tions are used o track sales by product by customer and to estimate
the contractual or statutory pnce Abbott's systems and calculations
have developed over tme as rabates have become more signsficant,
and Abbott believes they are relable

The following table s an analysts of the four largest rebate accruals,
which compnise approximately 74 percent of the consolidated rebate
provisions charged against revenuses in 2007 Remaining rebate
provisions charged aganst gross sales are not significant in the deter-
mination of operating earmings  (dofiars in thousands)

Domestic Pharmacautical Products
Domestic Medicaid  Pharmacy

Nutritionals and Benefit  Wholesaler
wWIC Medicare Manager Charge-
Rebates Rebates Rebates backs
Balance at
January 1, 2005 $ 98,047 $373058 $153798 § 44,053
Provisions 641189 £63,043 253,499 450 801
Payments {644,480)  (581,098) (273,168) (446,867}
Balance at
December 31, 2005 94,776 455,003 134,131 48,087
Provisions 636,849 527,860 281,221 532,847
Payments (595,477) (533.832) (246,456) (513,905)
Business combination — 36,191 50,675 20,188
Balarce at
December 31, 2006 136,148 485,422 219571 87,218
Prowisions 753,535 438,198 411,798 786,183
Payments (690,438) (503,580}  (394,692) (781,547)
Batance at

December 31, 2007 $199,245 $420,040 $236677 § 91,854

Histencally, adjustments to prior years’ rebate accruals have not been
matenal to net ncome In 2007, adjustments were made to prior
years' rebate accruals The Medicad and Medicare rebate accrual
was reduced by approximately $69 milion and the WIC rebate accrual
was Increased by approximately $19 millon Abbott employs vanous
technigues to verify the accuracy of clams submitted to 1it, and where
possible, works with the organizations submitting clams to gain insight
Into changes that might affect the rebate amounts For Medicaid,
Medicare and other government agency programs, the calculation

of a rebate involves interpretations of relevant regulations, which are
subject to challenge or change n interpretation

income Taxes — Abbott operates in numerous countnes where its
income tax retums are subject to audits and adjustments Because
Abbott operates globally, the nature of the audrt items are often very
complex, and the objectives of the government auditors can result In

a tax on the same iNcome in more than one country Abbott employs
internal and external tax professionals to minimize audit adjustment
amounts where possible On January 1, 2007, Abbott adopted the
provisions of FASB Interpretation No 48 “Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes,” which changed the measurement of tax contingencies
Under this Interpretation, in order to recognize an uncertain tax benefit,
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the taxpayer must be more likely than not of sustamning the position,
and the measurement of the benefit 15 calculated as the largest
amount that 1s more than 50 percent lkely to be realized upon resolu-
tion of the benefit Application of this Interpretation requires a
significant amount of judgment In the U S, Abbott’s federal ncome
tax returns through 2003 are settled, and the incoms tax returns for
years after 2003 are open Abbott does not record deferred income
taxes on earnings reinvested indefintely n foreign subsidianes

Pansion and Post-Employment Benefits — Abbott offers pension
benefits and post-employment health care to many of its employees
Abbott engages outside actuanes to calcu'ate its obligations and costs
under thess programs Abbott must develop long-term assumptions,
the most significant of which are tha health care cost trend rates, dis-
count rate and the expected return on plan assets The discount rates
used 1o measure llabiities were determuined based on high-quality fixed
Income secunties that match the duration of the expected retires ben-
efits The health care cost trend rates represent Abbott's expected
annual rates of change In the cost of health care benefits and I1s a for-
ward projection of health care costs as of the measurement date A
difference between the assumed rates and the actual rates, which will
not be known for decades, can be signfiicant in relation to the obliga-
tions and the annual cost recorded for these programs Recent low
interest rates have significantly ncreased actuanal losses for these
plans At December 31, 2007, pretax net actuanal losses and pror
service costs and {credits) recognized in Accumulated other compre-
hensive Income {oss) for Abbott's defined benefit plans and medical
and dental plans were $980 millon and $408 million, respectively
Actuanal losses and gains are amortized over the remaning service
attnbution perods of the employees under the corndor method, In
accordance with the rules for accounting for post-employment bene-
fits Differences between the expected long-term return on plan assets
and the actual annual return are amortized over a five-year penod
Faotnota 4 to the consolidated financial statements describes the
impact of a one-percentage pont change N the health care cost trend
rate, however, there can ba no certanty that a change would be hm-
itex] to onty one percentage point On December 31, 2006, Abbott
adopted the provisions of SFAS No 158 “Employers’ Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans ” The provi-
sions of this statement require the recogniiion of the deferrals on the
balance sheet with a comesponding charge to Accumutated other
comprehensva Income {loss) Adoption of this statement on
December 31, 2006 resulted in a decrease in Abbott's shareholders’
equity of approximatety $1 3 bilion

Valuation of Intangible Assets — Abbott has acquired and continues
to acquire significant Intangible assets that Abbott records at farr value
Those assets which do not yet have regulatory approval and for which
there are no alternative uses are expensed as acquired IN-Process
research and development, and those that have regulatory approval
are capitalized Transactions invoiving the purchase or sale of iIntang-
ble assets occur with some frequency between comparues in the
health care field and valuations are usually based on a discounted
cash flow analysis The discounted cash flow model requires assump-
tions about the timing and amount of future net cash mflows, nsk,

the cost of capital, terminal values and market particpants Each of
these factors can significantly affect the value of the intangible asset
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Abbott engages independent valuation experts who review Abbott's
cntical assumptions and calculations for significant acquisitions of
intangibles Abbott revews intangible assets for imparrment each
quarter using an undiscounted net cash flows approach If the undis-
counted cash flows of an intangible asset are less than the carrying
value of an Intangible asset, the Intangible asset 15 written down to ds
fair value, which i1s usually the discounted cash flow amount Where
cash fiows cannct be identified for an indvdual asset, the review 1S
applied at the lowest group Tevel for which cash flows are identfiable
Goodwill 1s reviewed for impaiment annually or when an event that
could result In an mparment of goodwil occurs At December 31,
2007, goodwill and intangibles amounted to $10 1 bilion and

$5 7 billlon, respectively, and amortization expense for ntangible
assets amounted to $782 milion in 2007 There were no iImparments
of goodwill in 2007, 2006 or 2005

Litigation — Abbott accounts for Itigation losses in accordance with
SFAS No 5, “Accounting for Gontingencies ™ Under SFAS No 5, loss
contingency provisions are recorded for probable losses at manage-
ment’s best estimate of a loss, or when a best estimate cannot be
made, a minimum loss centingency amount is recorded These esti-
mates are often nihally developed substantially earfier than the uitimate
loss 1s known, and the estimates are refined each accounting penod
as additional information becomes known Accordingly, Abbott is often
initially unable to develop a best estimate of loss, and therefore the
mirimum amount, which could be zero, 1s recorded As information
pecomes known, etther the minmum loss amount Is Increased,
resulting n additional loss provisions, or a best estimate can be made,
also resUiting in additional loss provisions Occasionally, a best est-
mate amount 18 changed to a fower amount when events result in an
expectation of a more favorable cutcoma than previously expected
Except for a patent case and the majontty of cases relating to pharma-
ceutical prcing for wihich Abbott 18 unable to esimate a loss, if any,
Abbott estimates the range of possible loss to be from approxmately
$110 million to $325 million for ts legal proceedings and environmente)
exposures Reserves of approximatsly $166 million have been
recorded at December 31, 2007 for these proceedings and expo-
sures These reserves represent management's best estimate of
probable loss, as defined by SFAS No &

Stock Compensation — On January 1, 2006, Abbott adopted

SFAS No 123 (revised 2004), "Share-Based Payment,” which requires
that far value of stock options be recorded in the results of operations
Since there 1s no market for trading employee stock options, manage-
ment must Lse a far value method There 1s no certainty that the
results of a far vaiue method would be the value at which employee
stock optians would be traded for cash Fair value methods require
management to make several assumptions, the most significant of
which are the selection of a far value mode!, stock pnce volatiity and
the average life of an option Abbott has readily available grant-by-
grant histoncal actvity for several years in its option administration
systemn that it uses in developing some of its assumptions Abbott
uses the Black-Scholes method to value stock options The results

of the Black-Scholes model are periodically compared to the binomial
model and the results have been comparable Abbott uses both his-
toncal volatility of its stock price and the imphed volatiity of currently
traded options to develop the volatiity assumptions Abbott uses the
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histoncal grant actvity, combined with expectations about future
exercise activity, to develop the average Iife assumptions Abbott has
also used the historical grant data to evaluate whether certan holders
of stock options exercised their options differantly than other holders
and has not found any differentiating pattern among holders

Results of Operations
Sales

The following table details the components of sales growth by
reportable segment for the last three years

Total % Components of Change %

Change Price Volume  Exchange
Total Net Sales
2007 vs 2006 153 12 109 3z
2006 vs 2005 06 06 0z 02
2005 vs 2004 135 01 121 13
Total U S
2007 v 2008 120 40 80 -
2006 vs 2005 (¥ 5) 24 09 -
2005 vs 2004 130 0B 122 —
Total Internaticnal
2007 ve 2006 188 (17) 140 65
2006 vs 2005 109 (13 127 {0 5)
2005 vs 2004 142 on 120 29
Pharmaceutical Products Segment
2007 vs 2006 180 24 123 33
2006 vs 2005 (9 5} 18 (110} 03)
2005 vs 2004 149 086 130 13
Nutntional Products $egment
2007 vs 2006 17 14 (14 17
2006 vs 2005 986 (0 4) 87 03
2005 vs 2004 97 5 94 08
Diagnostic Products Segment
2007 vs 2006 111 {0 6) 70 47
2006 vs 2005 57 11 T4 {06)
2005 vs 2004 a9 {12 az 19
Vascular Products Segment
2007 vs 2006 538 47 554 31
2006 vs 2005 3277 (4 8) 3332 09
2005 vs 2004 147 04 145 06

Worldwide 2007 sales compared to 2006 reflect the acquistions of
Guidant's vascular intervention and endovascular solutions businesses
on Aprd 21, 2006 and Kos Pharmaceuticals Inc 10 the fourth quanter
of 2006 In addition, the Pharmaceutical Products segment had an
agreement with Boshringer Ingelheim (B} to co-promote and distnbute
three of s products in the U S In 2005, Abbott and Bl amended

the agresment and effective January 1, 2006, Abbott no longer distnib-
uted or recorded sales for distnbution activities for the Bl products
although Abbott recorded a small amount of co-promotion revenue

In 2008 The increases N sales for 2006 excluding B! products were

11 6 percent for total net sales, 12 3 percent for total U S sales and

7 8 percent for Pharmaceutical Products segment sales Sales growth
in 2007 for the Nutntional Products segment reflects the completicn of
the US co-promotion of Synagrs In 2006 Excluding sales of Synagrs

in 2008, Nutritonal Products segment sales increased 11 3 percent

A companson of significant product group sales is as follows
Percant changes are versus the pnor year and are based on
unrounded numbers

Percent Parcent Percant
{dollars in mullrons) 2007 Changa 2006 Change 2005 Change
Pharmaceuticals —
U S Speclalty $4,349 24 83,505 25 $2,799 16
US Primary Care 3,739 23 2,561 4 2483 -
Intemational
Pharmaceuticals 6,002 16 5,157 8 4778 14
Nutnhionals —
US Pediatnc
Nutrtionals 1,233 9 1,128 3 1,097 {4)
International
Pediatnc Nutntionals 1,093 22 889 29 698 17
US Adult Nutntonals 1,077 2 1057 1 1,050 13
International
Adult Nutntionals 947 15 824 13! 742 ik
Diagriostics —
Immunochermistry 2,517 1 2,272 4 2,187 2

Increased sales volume of HUMIRA and incraased volume and price
for Depakote favorably impacted U S Specialty sales US Pnmary
Cara salas in 2007 were favorably impacted by sales of Aiaspan, a
new product from the acquisition of Kos Pharmaceuticals Inc in the
fourth quarter of 2006 In addition, increased sales volume for
Ommicef in 2006 and 2005 and increased sales of TrCor in all thres
years favorably impacted U S Prmary Care sales These ncreases
were partially oifset by lower sales of Omnicef in 2007 and lower

U S sales of Biaxin in all thres years due pnmanly to the introduction
of genenc compettion U S sales of Ommcef were $235 milion,
$637 million and $495 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively,
and U S sales of Baxn were $386 milion, $151 milion and $306 mil-
lion in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectvely Increased sales volume of
HUMIRA favorably impacted International Pharmaceuticals sales,
partially offset by decreased sales volume in 2006 due to genenc
competiton for clanthromyoin The decrease in sales of U S Pediatne
Nutrionals In 2005 was pnmaniy dug 1o overall infant nutntionals
non-WIC category decline and competrrve share loss International
Pediatnc Nutntionals sales increases were due pnmarly to volume
growth in developing countnes U 8 Adult Nutntionals sales in 2005
were favorably impacted by the acquisition of EAS in the fourth quarter
of 2004 International sales In 2007 were also favorably impacted by
the effect of the refatively weaker U S dollar Abbott has penodically
s0ld product nghts to non-strategic products and has recorded the
related gains n net sales in accordance with Abbott's revenue recogni-
hon policies as discussed in footnote 1 1o the consohdated financal
statements Related net sales were $184 million in 2007, $193 millon
N 2006 and $177 malion in 2005
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The expiration of licenses, patent protection and genenc competition
can affect the future revenues and operating income of Abbott
Significant ongoing genenc activities and significant patent and license
exprrations 1n the next three years arg as follows The U S composi-
tion of matter patent for Depakote expires In July of 2008 Abbott
holds non-composition of matter patents on the extendsd release
form of Depakote U S sales of Depakote were $1 5 billion i 2007
The Pharmaceutical Products segment markets Depakote Some
patents under icense In the Vascular Products segment related to
rapid exchange technolegy expire n 2008, however the Impact is not
expected to be matenal The patent for Prevacid, which is marketed
by TAP Pharmaceuticals, expires in 2009

Operating Earnings

Gross profit margins were 55 9 percent of net sales n 2007, 56 3 per-
cent i 2006 and 52 4 percent n 2005 The decrease in the gross
profit margin in 2007 was due, i part, to the effect of the unfavorable
impact In 2007 of the completion of the US  co-promoticn of Synagis
n 2006 as well as genenc competibion for Omnicef and Braxin sales
In 2007 Increased amortizaton of intangible assets acquired n 2008
also had an unfavorable impact on the gross profit margins in 2007
The increase in the gross profit margin n 2006 was due to favorable
product mix, pnmartly as a result of decreased sales of Boehninger
Ingelheim products that had lower margins than other products in

the Pharmaceutical Products segment and the decrease in the gross
profit margin in 2005 was due to unfavorable product mix, primanty
as a result of Increased sales of Boghnnger Ingethem products
Restructuring charges, discussed below, reduced the gross profit
margins in 2007, 2006 and 2005 by 0 7 percentage points, 1 1 per-
centage points and O 8 percentage points, raspectively Gross profit
margins In all years wera also affected by productmty improvements,
higher commodity costs, higher project expenses for new products,
higher manufacturing capacity costs for anticipated urnt growth and
the effects of inflaton

Inthe U S, states receve pnce rebates from manufacturers of infant
formula under the federally subsidized Special Supplemental Food
Program for Women, [nfants, and Chidren There are also rebate
programs for pharmaceutical products These rebate programs
continue to have a negative effect on the gross profit margins of the
Nutntronal and Phamaceutical Products segments Higher commodity
costs unfavorably impacted the gross profit margins for the Nutntonal
Products segment in 2007 and pneing pressures unfavorably
impacted the gross profit margmns in 2006 and 2005

The gross profit margins for the Pharmaceutical Products segment
were favorably inpacted in 2006 and unfaverably impacted in 2005 by
product mix The favorable product mix 1n 2006 was due to decreased
sales of lower margin Boshnnger Ingelherm products and the unfavor-
able impact on the gross profit margin in 2005 was due primanly to
increased sales of lower margin Boehringer Ingelheim products and
kgher other manufactunng costs

Research and development expense, excluding acquired In-process
and collaborations research and development, was $2 5 bifllion in
2007, $2 3 bilion in 2006 and $1 8 bilton in 2005 and represented
increases of 11 1 percent in 2007, 23 8 percent in 2006 and 7 3 per-
cent In 2005 The effect of recording compensation expense relating
to share-based awards in 2006 and additional costs assoctated with
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Abbott's decision to discontinue the commercial development of

the ZoMaxx drug-eluting stent ncreased research and development
expenses by 6 3 percentage points over 2008 The increases In 2007
and 2006 were also affected by the acquisitions of Guidant's vascular
intervention and endovascular solutiens businesses in Apni 2006

and Kos Pharmaceuticals Inc in the fourth quanter of 2006 These
increases also reflect ncreased spending to support pipeline
programs, including new sndications for HUMIRA, and ABT-335

{a cholesterol drug), ABT-335/Crestor fixed-dose combination,
ABT-874 (a biologic for psonasis and Crohn's disease), controlled-
release Vicodn CR, Xience V, as well as several Phase | and Phase |l
chirical programs in neuroscience and oncology The majornty of
research and development expenditures are concentrated on
pharmaceutical products

Selling, general and administrative expenses ncreased 16 7 percent
1n 2007 compared to increases of 15 5 percent in 2006 and 11 7 per-
cent in 2005 The 2007 increase reflects the acquisitions of Guidant's
vascular intervention and endovascular solutions businesses and

Kos Pharmaceuticals inc The 2006 increase reflects recording com-
pensation expense relating to share-based awards, a philanthropic
contribution to the Abbott Fund and the acquisition of Guidant's
vascular intervention and endovascular solutions businesses These
ftems mcreased selling, gensral and administrative expenses by

8 6 percentage points over 2005 The restructurng charges discussed
below and an increase n a bad debt reserve associated with an
unfavorable court ruling increased the percent change from 2004 by
2 7 percentage points N 2005 The remaining increases in seling,
general and administrative expenses were due prmanly to increased
selling and marketing suppert for new and existing products, ncluding
continued spending for HUMIRA and the continuing mternational
launch of Xfence V, as well as spending on other marketed pharma-
ceutical products Increases in all three years also reflect inflation

and addiional seling and marketing support pamanly in the
Pharmaceutical Products segment

Restructurings
(doliars in millions)

In 2007, 2006 and 2005, Abbott management approved plans to
realign its worldwide pharmaceutical and vascular manufacturing
operabions and selected domestic and international commercial and
research and development operations in order to reduce costs In
2007, 2006 and 2005, Abbott recorded pratax charges aganst earn-
ings of approximately $107, $210 and $256, respectively, reflecting
the imparment of manufactunng faciliies and other assets, employee
severance and other related charges Approximately $94, $181 and
$174, respectively, 1s ciassified as cost of products sold, $3, $29 and
$10, respectively, as research and developrent and $10 in 2007 and
$72 1n 2005 as seling, general and administrative Fair value for the
determination of the amount of asset iImparments was determined
pnmanly based on a discounted cash flow method An additional
590, $70 and $14 wers subsequently recorded in 2007, 2006 and
2005, respeciively, relating to these restructunngs, pnmanty for
accelerated depreciation 1n addition, Abbott implemented facilities
restructunng plans in 2007 related to the acquired operations of Kos
Pharmaceuticals Inc , which resulted n an increase to goodwall of
approximately $52
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The following summarnzes the actvity for restructunngs

Employes-
Ralated Asset

and Other Impaiments Total
2005 restructunng charges §162 $64 5258
Payments impairments
and other adjustments 37) 64} {101)
Accrued balance at Decernber 31, 2005 155 - 155
2006 restructunng charges 118 93 211
Payments, impalmenits
and other adjustments {80) {93) (173}
Accrued balance at Decemnber 31, 2006 193 — 193
2007 restructunng charges 122 38 160
Payments, imparments
and other adjustments naz1 (38) {159)
Accrued balance at December 31, 2007 $194 3 — $194

Abbaott expects to mcur up to an addwonal $73 n future penads for
restructunng plans, prmarnly for accelerated depreciation

Interest Expense

Interest expense Increased In 2007 and 2006 due primarly to

hegher borrow:ings as a result of the acquisitions of Guidant’s vascular
ntervention and endovascular solutions businesses and Kos
Pharmaceuticals Inc and Abbott’s nvestrent in the Boston Scientfic
common stock and note recevable

Other (income) expense, net

Cther (iIncomea) expense, net for 2007 includes a $190 milion fair
market valua loss adjustment to Abbatt’s Investrment in Boston
Scientific common stock and a realized gain of $37 milion on the
sales of Boston Scientific common stock Other (income} expense, net
for 2007 and 2006 includes fair value gan adjustments of $28 million
and $91 milion, respectively, to certan dervative financial nstruments
ncluded with the Investment in Boston Scientific commaon stock

Taxes on Earnings

The ncome tax rates on earmings were 19 3 percent in 2007,

24 6 percent in 2006 and 27 0 percent In 2005 Taxes on earrngs in
20086 reflect the effect of the tax rates appled to acquired in-process
research and development and the resolution of prior years’ income
tax audits and the effect of other discrete tax tems For 2008, the tax
rates applied 1o acquired in-process and collaborations research and
development increased tho effective tax rate by 6 6 percentage points
and the effect of the Income tax audit resolution and other discrete tax
iterns decreased the effective tax rate by 5 5 percentage points In
2008, Abbott remitted $4 3 billon of forergn earnings N accordance
with the Amencan Jobs Creation Act of 2004 and recorded additicnal
tax expense of $245 millon, which increased the effective tax rate by
approximately 5 3 percentage points This was partially offset by
adjustments of pnior years' tax accounts resulbing prirnarly from reso-
lution of prer years® accrual requirements, which decreased the
effective tax rate by 2 3 percentage points Abbott expeacts to apply
an annual effective rate of somewhat above 19 percent In 2008
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Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

Eftecive January 1, 2007, Abbont adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No 157, “Farr Value Measurements,”
and SFAS No 159, "The Farr Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabiities " Adoption of these Standards did not have a
materal Impact on Abbott’s financial position However, adoption of
SFAS No 159 and SFAS No 157 resulted in a decrease to Earnings
employad in the business of approximately $189 milion, substantally
offset by an increase to Accumulated other comprehensive Income
(loss) of approximatsly $182 millon as of January 1, 2007

Effectve January 1, 2007, Abbott adopted FASB Interpretation No 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes " FASE Interpretation

No 48 requires that a recorded tax benefit must be mors likely than
not of being sustained upon examination by tax authonhes based
upon is techrical ments The amount of benefit recorded 1 the largest
amount of benefit that 1s greater than 50 percent likely of being realized
upon ultimate setilement Adoption of this Interpretation did not have

a matenal Impact on Abbott's financial position

Business Gombinations, Technology Acquisitions
and Related Transactions

In December 2008, Abbott acquired Kos Pharmaceuticals Inc

for cash of approximately $3 8 billion, net of cash held by Kos
Pharmaceuticals Inc , to expand Abbott's presence in the liprd man-
agement market and 1o provide several on-market and late-stage
pipehne products Kos Pharmaceuticals Inc was a specialty pharma-
ceutical company that developed and marketed propnetary
medications for the treatment of chronic cardiovascular, metabolic and
respiratory diseases This business was acquired cn December 13,
2006 and the financial resulis of the acguired operations are included
In these financial statements beginning on that date The acquisition
was financed primanly with short-term debt The afiocation of the pur-
chase pnce resulted in a charge of $1 3 pillon for acquired IN-process
research and davelopment, intangible assets of $821 milion, goodwill
{pnmarily non-deductible} of $1 6 billon and net habiliies, prmarily
deferred income taxes recorded at acguisition of $331 million
Acqurred iIntangible assets are being amortized over 4 to 15 years
Non-deductible acguired in-process research and development was
charged to income in 2006

A substantial amount of the acquired in-process research and devel-
opment charge relating to the Kos acgquisition refated primanly to
cholesterol treatment drugs The research efforts ranged from 70 per-
cent to 80 percent complete at the date of acquisiion The valuation
method used to far value the projects was the Multi-psnod Excess
Earnings Method (income Approach) and the nsk-adjusted discount
rate used was 16 percent In developing assumptions for the valuation
model, ccmparable Abbott products or products marketed by com-
petitors were used to estimate phcing, margns and expense levels

As of December 31, 2007, one drug was approved for marketing n
the U S and the remamng research efforts were primarily on schedule
The estmated projected costs to complete the projects totaled
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approximately $75 milion as of December 31, 2007 with anticipated
product launches from 2008 through 2010 There have been no signif-
icant changes n the development plans for the acquired incomplete
projects Signficant net cash inflows will commence with the faunches
of the products

In order to expand Abbott’s presence in the growing vascular market,
Abbott acquired Guidant's vascular ntervention and endovascular
solutions businesses on April 21, 2006 for approximately $4 1 billon,
In cash, i connection with Boston Scientific's acquisition of Guidant

In addition, Abbott will alse pay to Boston Scientific $250 million each
upen gevarnment approvals to market the Xence V drug-eluting stent
inthe US and in Japan Government approvals are anticipated in
2008 for the U § and in 2009 for Japan Each $250 milion payment
will result In the recording of additional goodwill The allocation of the
purchase pnca resuited in a charge of $865 mullion for acquired w-pro-
cess research and development, intangible assets of $1 2 billion,
goodwill (pnmanly deductble} of $1 7 bilion and tangible net assets of
$580 milon Acquired Intangible assets are baing amortized over 4 to
15 years Deductible acquired in-process research and development
was charged to ncome in 2006 The net tangible assets acquired
constst prmanly of property and equipment of approxamately $530 mil-
lion, trade accounts recevable of approximately $250 mullion and
inventones of approxmately $120 mulion, net of assumed liabilities,
primarily trade accounts payable, Iiigation reserves and other labilities

A substanual amount of the acguired in-process research and devel-
opment charge relating to the Guidant acquisition related to drug
eluting and bioabsorbable stents The research efforts ranged from

35 percent to 85 percent complete at the date of acquisition The
valuation method used to farr value the projects was the Multi-pericd
Excess Earnings Method (Incorme Approach) and the nsk-adjusted
discount rates used ranged from 16 percent to 25 percent In develop-
Ing assumpiicns for the valuation model, comparable Abbott products
or products marketed by competitors were used to estimate pneing,
margins and expense levels As of December 31, 2007, the research
efforts were primanly on schedule The estimated projected costs to
complete totaled approxmatety $390 mullon as of December 31,
2007, with anticipated product launch dates from 2008 through 2013
There have been no signficant changes in the development plans for
the acquired incompleta projects Significant net cash inflows will
commence within one to two years after product launch

In order to facilitate Boston Scientific’s acquisition of Guidant, Abbott
also acquired 64 6 miflion shares of Boston Scientrfic common stock
directly from Boston Scientfic and loaned $900 mullion to a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Boston Scientific The common stock was valued
at $1 3 bilion and the note recevable was valued at $829 milion at
the acquisition date In connection with the acguisition of the shares,
Boston Scientific 1s entitled to certain after-tax gains upen Abbott's
sale of the shares In addition, Boston Scientific agreed to remburse
Abbott for certan borrowing costs on debt incurred to acquirs the
Boston Scientific shares Abbott recorded a net dervative financial
instruments liability of $59 million for the gain-sharing denvative
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financial nstrument kability and the interest denvative financial instru-
ment asset The effect of recording the shares, the loan to Boston
Scientific and the denvatve financial mstruments at far value on the
date of acquisition resulted in the recording of addiional goodwill of
approxmately $204 milion Changes i the farr value of the dervative
financial Instruments, net are recorded in Other (income) expense, net

In 2005, Abbott acquired the remaining interest in a small medical
products company and a less than 50 percent equity Interest in a
small medical products company for $25 million ln 2005, Abbott
also acquired additional nghts related to HUMIRA for approximately
$270 milion, which are being amortized over 13 years

Had the above acquisttions taken place on January 1 of the previous
year, consolidated net sales and incoms would not have been signifi-
cantly different from reported amounts

Financial Condition
Cash Flow

Net cash from operating activiies amounted to $5 2 bilion, $5 3 bilkon
and $5 0 billon in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively Cash from
operating actvities n 2007 and 2006 compared to 2005 1s higher due
to higher net earrings adjusted for after-tax non-cash charges for
acquired in-process research and development in 2006 and shara-
based compensation and higher contributions to retirement benefit
plans in 2005 compared to 2007 and 2006, partially offset by higher
Income tax payments in 2008, Including tax payments related to the
2005 remittances of foreign earmings under the Amencan Jobs
Creation Act Abbott funds its domestic pension plans according to
IRS funding Imitations 1n 2007 and 20086, $200 millon was funded o
the main domestic pension plan and n 2005, $641 milion was funded
to the main domestic pension plan Abbott expects pension funding
for its man domestic pension plan of $200 millon annually The
Increased contnbution In 2005 was dus, n part, to tha investment of
cash remitted under the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 Abbott
expects annual cash flow from operating activiies to continue to
exceed Abbott's capitai expenditures and cash dividends

Debt and Capital

At December 31, 2007, Abbott's long-term debt rating was AA by
Standard & Poor’s Corporation and A1 by Moody's Investors Service
Abbott has readily avalable financial resources, inctuding unused lnes
of credit of $3 0 billon that support commercial paper borrowing
arrangements These lines of credit expire in 2012

In October 2008, the board of directors authonzed the purchase

of $2 5 bilhon of Abbott’s common shares from time to time and no
shares were purchased under this authonzation in 2006 in 2007,
Abbott purchased approximately 19 0 million of its common shares
at a cost of approxmately $1 0 bilion In 2006 and 2005, Abbott
purchased approxmately 17 3 milhon and 30 0 million, raspectvely,
of its common shares under pnor authonzations at a cost of
approxmately $755 million and $1 3 bilion, respectively
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Under a registration statement filed with the Secunties and Exchange
Commussion n February 2008, Abbott issued $3 5 bilien of long-term
debt in 2007 that matures in 2012 through 2037 with interest rates
ranging from § 15 percent to 6 15 percent Proceeds from this debt
were used to pay down short-term borrowings that were incurred to
partially furnd the acquisition of Kos Pharmaceuticals Inc Under the
same registration statement, Abbott 1ssusd $4 0 billion of long-term
debt in 20086 that matures in 2009 through 2016 with Interest rates
ranging from 5 375 percent to 5 875 percent Proceeds from this debt
were used to pay down domestic commercial paper borrowings that
were Incurred to partially fund the acquistion of Guidant's vascular
Intervention and endovascular solutions businesses In addition, com-
mercial paper borrowings were used to repay $1 9 billon of long-term
debt in 2006 In 2005, Abbott borrowed $1 9 bilion of long-term debt
that was scheduled to mature In May 2008 with vanabte interest rates
above LIBOR In 2007 and 2006, $300 millon and $1 6 billion,
respectively, of this debt was paid pnor to maturity

{dollars in milkons)

Working Capital

Working capital was $4 9 billon at Degember 31, 2007 and $4 0 billon
at December 31, 2005 At December 31, 2006, current habiliies
exceeded current assets by approximately $669 milion as a result of
Increased short-term borrowings used to acguire Kos Pharmaceuticals
inc In December 2006

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures of $1 7 billon in 2007, $1 3 billon in 2006 and
%1 2 billion in 2005 were pnncipally for upgrading and expanding
manufactunng, research and development, investments in nformation
technology and administrative support facilities in all segments, and
for laboratory instruments placed with customers

Contractiual Obhgations

The following table summarizes Abbott's estimated contractual
obligations as of December 31, 2007

Payment Due By Penod

2013 and

Total 2008 2009-2010 2011-2012 Thereafter

Long-term debt, ncluding current matunties and future interest payments $14,831 1365 $2,052 $3,722 $7,692

Operating lease obligations 434 87 131 a7 129

Capitalzed auto lease obligattons 78 26 52 - —

Purchase commitments (a) 3,551 3,194 283 &7 7
Cther long-term labilities reflected on the consolidated balance sheet—

Benefit plan obligations 2,192 - 323 362 1,505

Other 1,100 - 742 115 243

Total $22,186 $4,672 $3,585 $4,353 $9,576

(a} Purchase commitments are for purchases made 1 the normal course of business to meet gparational and capital expenditure requirerents

Contingerdt Obligations

Abbott has penodically entered into agreements in the ordinary course
of business, such as assignmant of product nghts, with other compa-
nies which has resulted in Abbott becoming secondanly liabla for
obhgations that Abbott was previously pnmanty liable Since Abbott no
longer maintains a business relationship with the other parties, Abbott
1s unable to develop an estimate of the maximum potential amount of
future payments, if any, under these obligations Based upon past
expenience, the likellhood of payments under these agreements 1S
remote In additon, Abbott perodically acquires a business or product
nghts in which Abbott agrees to pay contingent consideration based
an attaining certain thresholds or based on the occurrence of certam
avents In connection with the acquisition of Guidant's vascular inter-
vention and endovascular solutions businesses, Abbott will pay to
Boston Scientific $250 mMion sach upon government approvals to
market the Xience V drug-eluting stent n the U S and in Japan
Government approvals are anticipated in 2008 forthe U S and in
2009 for Japan In addition, Abbott has retained liabilittes for taxes on
Incorme pror to the spin-off of Hospira and certain potential habilities,

if any, related to alleged improper pneing practices N connection with
federal, state and private reimbursement for certain drugs
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Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In December 2007, the FASB issued two standards SFAS No 141
(revised 2007) “Business Combinations” and SFAS No 160
“Noncontroling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements —

an amendment of ARB No 51 " Abbott will adopt these standards on
January 1, 2009 Statement No 141 (rewised 2007) will impact Abbott
pnmanly In five areas acquired n-process research and development
will be accounted for as an indefinits lived intangible asset until
approval or discontnuation rather than as expense, acquisiicn costs
will be expensed rather than added to the cost of an acquisition,
restructunng costs i connection with an acquisition will be expensed
rather than added to the cost of an acquesttion, the farr value of contin-
gent consideration at the date of an acquisition will be included in the
cost of an acquisition, and the far value of contingent labrities that are
more likely than not of occurrence will be recorded at the date of an
acquistion The effect of these changes will be apphcable to acquisi-
tions on or after January 1, 2008 Adoption of Staterment No 160 will
not have a matenal effect on Abbott




Financial Review

Legislative Issues

In August 2008, the President of the United States signed the
Pension Protection Act of 2006 Among other things, the Act estab-
bishes new minimum funding requirements for plan years beginning
in 2008 Abbott doss not expect this Act to significantly impact
future fundings of its domestic defined benefit pension plans

Abbott’s pnmary markets are highly competitive and subject to sub-
stantial government regulation throughout the world Abbott expects
debate to continue over the availability, method of delivery, and
payment for health care products and serices Abbott believes that
if legisiation is enacted, it could have the effect of reducing access
to health care products and services, or reducing pnces or the rate
of pnce increases for health care products and services [t1s not
possible to predict the extent to which Abbott or the health care
industry in general might be adversely affected by these factors in
the future A more complete discussion of these factors i1s contained
in Itern 1, Business, and ltem 1A, Risk Factors on Form 10-K

Private Secunties Litigation Reform Act of 1985
A Caution Congcerning Forward-Looking Statements

Under the safe harbor provisions of the Private Secunties Litigation
Reform Act of 1995, Abbott cauttons Investors that any forward-look-
Ing statements or projections made by Abbott, ncluding those made

in this document, are subject to nsks and uncertainties that may cause

actual results to differ matenally from those projected Economic,
competitive, governmental, technological and other factors that may
affect Abbott’s operations are discussed in 1A, Risk Factors, to the
Annual Report on Form 10-K
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Summary of Setected Financial Data
(Codlars I milions  except per share data)

Year Ended December 31 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Summary of Operations

Net sales $25,914 2 22,4763 22,3378 19,6800 17,2803 15,2795 13,9185
Cost of products sold $11,4220 92,8151 10,641 1 8,884 2 77742 68,8205 8,107 1

Research and development (a) $ 25058 22553 1,821 2 1,696 8 16238 1,474 5 1,4918
Selling, general and administrative $ 74080 6,349 7 5,496 1 49218 4,808 1 3,7249 34910
Operating earnings $ 45785 20422 4,362 3 3,898 3 29740 3,1519 1,498 2
Interest expense $ 5931 416 2 241 4 2002 188 3 2389 307 3
Interast Income $ (136 8) (123 8) 87 7) {51 1} {41 9) (33 5) (71 4)
Other (income}, net $ (347 5) {526 5) (411 3} (376 4) (5659 5) (374 4) (231 3)
Earmngs from continuing

operations before taxes $ 4,469 6 22764 4,6199 41256 3,387 2 3,3210 1,493 6
Taxes on earmings from

continuing operations $ 8633 559 6 1,247 9 949 8 882 4 7740 2159
Earruings from continuing operations $ 3,6063 1,716 8 3,372 1 3,1758 2,504 7 25470 1,277 7
Basic earmings per share

from continuing operations $ 234 112 217 203 160 163 082
Diluted sarnings per share

from continuing operabions $ 23 112 218 202 16893 182 082
Financial Position

Working capital $ 49395 (669 3} 38705 3.8088 2,6509 21198 492 4
Long-term mnvestments $ 11263 12299 134 0 1458 406 4 2508 8647 2
Net property and equipment $ 75181 65,946 4 6,003 1 6,007 9 6,281 8 5,828 1 5565615
Total assets $39,713 9 36,178 2 29,141 2 28,767 5 26,039 3 23,5927 22,7555
Long-term debt $ 94878 7,0007 45715 4,787 9 3,452 3 4,274 0 43355
Shareholders’ nvestment $17.7785 14,054 2 14,4153 14,3258 13,0723 10,664 6 9,059 4
Return on sharehelders' investment

from continuing operations Y% 227 121 235 238 2286 280 159
Book value per share $ 1147 914 937 318 8 36 682 583
Other Statistics

Gross profit margin % 559 563 524 549 550 554 561

Research and development to net sales % 97 100 82 86 94 97 107
Net cash from operating activities

of continuing operations $ 5,1838 5,262 1 5,047 4 4,306 0 3,385 2 3,6535 3,0837
Capital expenditures $ 18562 1,337 8 1,207 &5 1,201 6 1,050 1 1,105 4 963 6
Cash dvidends declared par common sharé $ 130 118 110 104 098 094 084
Common shares outstanding (in thousands) 1,549,910 1,537,243 1,539,235 1,560,024 1,564,518 1,563,068 1,554,530
Number of common shareholders 73,176 77.727 82,237 88,582 91,212 94,687 97,760
Number of employees 68,697 66,663 59,735 60,617 58,181 57.819 56,426
Sales per employee (in dollars) $ 377,225 337,163 373,048 324,662 297,010 264,265 246,668
Market prnice per share — high $ 5950 49 87 5000 47 63 47 15 5800 5717
Market pnce per share — low $ 4875 3918 3750 3826 3375 29 80 42 00
Market pnce per share - close $§ 5615 48 71 3943 46 65 46 60 4000 5575

{a) In2006 2005 2004, 2003 2002 and 2001 Abbott alse recorded pretax charges of $2,014, $17, $279 $100 $108 and $1 330 respectvely for acquired in process research and

developmant related to business acouistions
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Shareholder and Corporate information

Stock Listing

The ticker symbol for Abbott's common
stock 1s ABT It 1s isted on the New York,
Chicago, London and Swiss exchanges

It 1s traded on the Boston, Philadelphia and
Nationat Stock Exchanges, as well as on
the NYSE Arca and NASDAQ IM marksts

Quarterly Didend Dates

Drndends are expected to be declared and
pad on the following schedule in 2008,
pending approval by the board of directors

Quarter Declared Record Paid
First 215 4115 515
Second 6/6 M5 8/15
Third 92 10/15 1115

Fourth 12/12 1/16/09  215/09

Tax Information for Shareholders

Abbott 1s an llinois High Impact Business
and 1s located ma U S federal Foreign
Trade Sub-Zone (Sub-Zone 22F)
Dwvidends may be eligible for a
subtraction from base income for

lilincis Income tax purposes

If you have any guestions, please contact
your tax advisor

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

The Abbott Dividend Reinvestment

Plan offers registered shareholders an
opportunity to purchase additional shares,
commission-free, through automatic
dmidend reinvestment and/or optional
cash investments Interested persons
may contact the transfer agent, call
Abbott's Investor Newsline or write Abbott
Shareholder Seraces

Dmdend Direct Deposii

Shareholders may have quarterly dvidends
deposited directly into a checking or
savings account at any financial institution
that participates in the Automated Cleanng
House system For more information,
please contact the transfer agent, call

the Investor Naewsline or write Abbott
Shareholder Services

Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of shareholders will

be held at 9 am on Fnday, Apni 25,

2008, at Abbott's corporate headquarters
Questions regarding the annual mesting may
be directed to the Corporate Secratary

A copy of Abbott's 2007 Form 10-K Annual
Report, as filed with the Secunties and
Exchange Commission, is avallable on the
Abbott Web site at www abbott com

or by contacting the Investor Newsline

CEOQO and CFO Certifications

in 2007, Abbott’s chief executive officer
(CEOQ) provided to the New York Stock
Exchange the annual CEQ certrfication
regarding Abbott's comphance with the
New York Stock Exchange’s corporate
governance listing standards In addition,
Abbott’s CEC and chief financial officer
filed with the U S Securties and Exchange
Commussion all required certifications
regarding the quality of Abbott's public
disclosures inits fiscal 2007 reporis

Investor Newsline
{847) 937-7300

Invastor Relations
Dept 362, APED2

Sharehoider Services
Dept 312, AP6D2

Corporate Secretary
Dept 364, APGD2

Abbott

100 Abbott Park Road

Abbott Park, IL 60064-6400 U S A
{847) 937-6100

Web Site
www abbott com

Global Ciizenship Report

Visit www abbott com/citizenship to read
Abbott's current global citizenship report

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Computershare

PO Box 43078
Providence, Rl 02940-3078
(888) 332-2268

www computershare com

Shareholder Informaton

Shareholders with questions about ther
accounts rmay contact the transfer agent,
call the Investor Newsline or write Abbott
Shareholdsr Services

Indmiduals who would like to recenve
additional information or have questions
regarding Abbott's business activitias

may call the Investor Newshne, wrte Abbott
Investor Relations or wvisit Abbott's Web site

Some staternents in this annual report may be forward-looking statements for purposes of the Private Secunties Litigation Reform Act of 1995
Abbott cautions that these forward-locking statements are subject to nsks and uncertainties that may cause actual results 1o differ matenaltly from
those indicated in the forward-locking staternents Economic, competitive, governmental, technological and other factors that may affect Abboit’s
cperations are discussed in tem 1A, “Risk Factors,” in our Securnties and Exchange Commussion 2007 Form 10-K and are incorporated by reference
We undertake no cbligation to release publicly any revisions to forward-locking statements as the result of subsequent events or developments

Abbott trademarks and products in licensed by Abbott are shown n italics in the text of this report Crestor and Hercaptin are not trademarks of Abbott Laboratories

© 2008, Abbott Laboratones
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